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Agenda Item 2
ABERDEEN, 14 June, 2019. Minute of Meeting of the STRATEGIC
DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY.

Present:

Councillor John Cox, Vice-Chair; and Councillors Aitchison, Bell, Cooke,
Forsyth (as substitute for Councillor Topping), Graham, Grant, Johnston,
Mair, Mason (as substitute for Councillor Boulton), Mollison (as substitute for
Councillor Latham), and Yuill.

Officers:

Strategic Development Planning Authority: Ms S Lamont and Mr T
Walsh, Senior Planners;
Aberdeen City Council: Ms G Beattie, Chief Officer, Strategic Place
Planning; Ms F Closs, Team Leader, Planning and Environment; Ms L
Christie, Solicitor; Mr D Dunne, Policy and Strategy Manager, Strategic
Place Planning, and Ms L Sumner? Information Officer;
Aberdeenshire Council: Mr R Gray, Head of Service, Planning and
Building Standards; Ms M Greig and Ms S Shaw, Senior Sustainability and
Information Officers; Mr A Leil, Accountant; and Ms J McRobbie, Committee
Officer.

In attendance: Ms A MacDonald, Senior Audit Manager, Audit Scotland.

1. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

2. MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING
AUTHORITY OF 20 MARCH, 2019
The Authority had before them, and approved as a correct record, the Minute of its previous
meeting of 20 March, 2019.

3. 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN – REPORT BY EXTERNAL AUDITOR
There had been circulated a report dated 14 March, 2019, by the Treasurer, containing the
External Auditor’s “Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority Annual
Audit Report, 2018/19”.
Having heard from Ms MacDonald of Audit Scotland as to the main points of the plan, which
focused on risk and planned work, and the context and timing of the audit work,
The Authority Agreed:- to note the 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan as prepared by Audit Scotland.
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4. UNAUDITED ACCOUNTS – REPORT BY TREASURER
There had been circulated a report dated 14 June, 2019 by the Treasurer, containing the
Unaudited Annual Accounts for 2018/19 of the Strategic Development Planning Authority
(SDPA) for consideration.
Having noted that the accounts would now be submitted to the External Auditor for
consideration and comment, and the audited accounts returned to the Authority at its
September meeting,
The Authority agreed:- to note the unaudited accounts as detailed in the report.

5. SDPA BUDGET MONITORING POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH, 2019 – REPORT BY
TREASURER
There had been circulated a report dated 14 June, 2019 by the Treasurer detailing the budget
position as at 31 March, 2019, Having been advised that the disparity between the budget
approved in March 2018 and the outturn reported related to the appointment of a third member
of staff in that period, and had lead to an additional £3000 being provided by each partner,
The Authority agreed:- to note the year-end budget monitoring position as detailed in the
report.

6. CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE – REPORT BY TREASURER
With reference to the Minute of Meeting of June, 2018, (Item 5), there had been circulated a
report dated 5 June, 2019, by the Treasurer, proposing the formal adoption of a Code of
Corporate Governance, as recommended in the 2017/18 Annual Audit Report by Audit
Scotland, to formalise existing good practice in governance.
Having heard that other recommendations from this report were also under discussion by
officers and would be reported in due course,
The Authority agreed:(1) to adopt the Code of Corporate Governance for the partnership as detailed in Appendix
1 to the report;
(2) that the Code of Corporate Governance be published on the SDPA website; and
(3) that the Code be reviewed annually, and a governance statement reported to the
Authority as part of the annual accounts.

7. HOUSING LAND AUDIT 2019
There had been circulated a joint report by the Chief Officer, Strategic Place Planning,
Aberdeen City Council, and the Head of Planning and Building Services, Aberdeenshire
Council, detailing the 2019 Housing Land Audit and considering its implications for the housing
land supply positions.
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There was discussion of the various matters which could constrain the development of
identified sites, and Members heard from officers of the options which could be used to
highlight the reasons for constraint more readily.
The Authority agreed:(1) to delegate to the Chief Officer, Strategic Place Planning, Aberdeen City Council, and
the Head of Planning and Building Services, Aberdeenshire Council, in consultation
with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Authority, the revision of the Housing Land Audit,
as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, to highlight the reasons for constraint at an
earlier iteration;
(2) to note the effective land supply of 7.2 years in the Aberdeen Housing Market Area
and 5.5 years in the Rural Housing Market Area; and
(3) to commend staff on their work in collating the Audit across both Authorities.

8. BULLETIN JUNE, 2019
There had been circulated a joint report by the Chief Officer, Strategic Place Planning,
Aberdeen City Council, and the Head of Planning and Building Services, Aberdeenshire
Council, providing a brief overview of strategic planning matters involving, or relating to, the
work undertaken by the Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA), including (a) the
appointment of a Reporter to consider the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development
Plan; (b) an update on the progression of the Planning Bill, now at its third stage of
consideration; (c) The Scottish Minister’s treble point rejection of the South East Scotland
Strategic Development Plan (SESPLAN); (d) the number of responses to recent consultations
on the Aberdeen City, and the Aberdeenshire, Local Development Plans’ Main Issues, which
would be reported to the September meeting of the Authority; and (e ) provided updates on
the A96 Dualling East of Huntly, Routing and Design options and the Network Rail
Improvements/ Initiatives.
The Authority agreed:- to note the updates provided.

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - MINUTE OF AGREEMENT
There had been circulated a joint report requesting Members’ consideration of a proposed
amendment to the current Minute of Agreement, which would allow the Chairing of the
Authority to be equally shared by Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils during the fiveyear term of local authority elections. The report proposed routes which would, if successful,
allow the Minute of Agreement to be revised before 30 June, 2019 when, in terms of the current
Agreement, the chairing would default automatically to the Vice Chair.
There was discussion of the requirement to clarify the wording of paragraph 3.6 of the
proposed amendment in respect of repeat holding of office and the trigger for the automatic
switch from Chair to Vice Chair, and
The Authority agreed:(1) to approve the modification to the Minute of Agreement as outlined at paragraph 3.6
of the Report, subject to the delegation to the Chief Officer, Strategic Place Planning,
Aberdeen City Council, and the Head of Planning and Building Services,
Aberdeenshire Council, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Authority,
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the power to amend the wording in paragraph 3.6, to clarify that (a) there shall be no
restriction on the Chair or Vice-Chair holding office for more than one term and (b) that
where the term of office is less than one full Council term, the Vice-Chair will
automatically assume the role of Chair for the remaining period of that Council term;
(2) to extend the current terms of appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair by a period of
six months, subject to ratification, before 30 June, 2019, of the said modification by the
partner authorities; and
(3) that the matter be remitted to both Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council
for consideration of the proposed modification to the Minute of Agreement.

10. DATES OF FUTURE SDPA MEETING
The Authority noted dates for future meetings as detailed below:25 September, 2019 – 2.00pm- Town House; and
13 December, 2019 – 2.00pm – Woodhill House.

Councillor John Cox, Vice-Chair.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 25 September 2019
Title : Annual Audit Report 2018/19
1

Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide the Authority with the external auditor’s annual report in respect of the
2018/19 audit of Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning
Authority’s annual accounts.
2

Background

2.1 The external auditor’s audit plan for the 2018/19 financial year was considered
by the Authority in June 2019. It set out the audit approach to providing an
opinion on the Authority’s financial statements which included:

2.2

4

•

understanding the business of Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic
Development Planning Authority and the associated risks which could
impact on the financial statements

•

assessing the key systems of internal control, and establishing how
weaknesses in these systems could impact on the financial statements

•

determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to
provide us with sufficient audit evidence as to whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

The report includes the significant matters arising from the audit of the annual
accounts. The report also brings together the auditor’s key messages from all
audit work undertaken during the year in accordance with the auditor’s Annual
Audit Plan and Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice.
Recommendation

4.1 It is recommended that the Authority:
a) Consider and note the auditor’s report.

Report prepared by:
Anne MacDonald
Senior Audit Manager, Audit Scotland
13 September 2019

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Aberdeen City and Shire
Strategic Development
Planning Authority
2018/19 Annual Audit Report

Prepared for Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority
and the Accounts Commission
25 September 2019
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Who we are
The Auditor General, the Accounts Commission and Audit Scotland work together to
deliver public audit in Scotland:

• The Auditor General is an independent crown appointment, made on the
recommendation of the Scottish Parliament, to audit the Scottish
Government, NHS and other bodies and report to Parliament on their
financial health and performance.
• The Accounts Commission is an independent public body appointed by
Scottish ministers to hold local government to account. The Controller of
Audit is an independent post established by statute, with powers to report
directly to the Commission on the audit of local government.
• Audit Scotland is governed by a board, consisting of the Auditor General, the
chair of the Accounts Commission, a non-executive board chair, and two
non-executive members appointed by the Scottish Commission for Public
Audit, a commission of the Scottish Parliament.

About us
Our vision is to be a world-class audit organisation that improves the use of public
money.
Through our work for the Auditor General and the Accounts Commission, we
provide independent assurance to the people of Scotland that public money is
spent properly and provides value. We aim to achieve this by:
• carrying out relevant and timely audits of the way the public sector manages
and spends money
• reporting our findings and conclusions in public
• identifying risks, making clear and relevant recommendations.
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Key messages
2018/19 annual accounts
1 The authority’s financial statements give a true and fair view and were
properly prepared.

2 The audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary
and annual governance statement are all consistent with the financial
statements and prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices.

Governance, transparency and financial sustainability
3 Governance arrangements will be enhanced through regular review of
the operation of the local code of corporate governance.

4 The authority experiences financial stability through the continued
commitment from partner authorities.
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Introduction
1. This report is a summary of our findings arising from the 2018/19 audit of
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority (the authority).
The report is divided into sections which reflect our public sector audit model.
2. The scope of our audit was set out in our Annual Audit Plan presented to the
authority in June 2019. In accordance with Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice,
we explained at that time that the small body clause applies to the authority. The
main elements of the 2018/19 audit therefore included:
•

assurances to support our opinion on the annual accounts

•

consideration of the appropriateness of the disclosures in the annual
governance statement

•

a review of financial sustainability.

Responsibilities and reporting
3. The authority has primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial
stewardship of public funds. This includes preparing an annual report and accounts
that are in accordance with proper accounting practices. The authority is also
responsible for compliance with legislation putting arrangements in place for
governance, propriety and regularity that enable it to successfully deliver its
objectives.
4. Our responsibilities as independent auditor appointed by the Accounts
Commission are established by the Local Government in Scotland Act 1973, the
Code of Audit Practice (2016) and supplementary guidance and International
Standards on Auditing in the UK.
5. As public-sector auditors we give independent opinions on the annual report and
accounts and conclude on securing financial sustainability and appropriateness of
the governance statement disclosures. In doing this, we aim to support
improvement and accountability.
6. The Code of Audit Practice 2016 (the Code) includes provisions relating to the
audit of small bodies. Where the application of the full wider audit scope is judged
by auditors not to be appropriate to an audited body then the annual audit work can
focus on the appropriateness of the disclosures in the governance statement and
the financial sustainability of the body and its services. As highlighted in our
2018/19 Annual Audit Plan, due to the volume and lack of complexity of the
financial transactions, we applied the small body provisions of the Code to the
2018/19 audit.
7. The weaknesses or risks identified are only those which have come to our
attention during our normal audit work and may not be all that exist.
Communicating these does not absolve management from its responsibility to
address the issues we raise and to maintain adequate systems of control.
8. We confirm that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard. We have not undertaken any non-audit related services and therefore
the 2018/19 audit fee of £2,900 as set out in our Annual Audit Plan, remains
unchanged. We are not aware of any relationships that could compromise our
objectivity and independence.
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9. This report is addressed to both the authority and the Controller of Audit and will
be published on Audit Scotland's website www.audit-scotland.gov.uk in due course.
10. We would like to thank the management and staff for their cooperation and
assistance during the audit.
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Part 1
Audit of 2018/19 annual accounts

Main judgements
The authority’s financial statements give a true and fair view and were properly
prepared. We provided unqualified audit opinions on the accounts.
The audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary and
annual governance statement are all consistent with the financial statements
and prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.

Audit opinions on the annual accounts
11. The annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 were approved by the
authority on 25 September 2019. We reported, within the independent auditor’s
report, that the:
• financial statements give a true and fair view and were properly prepared
• the audited part of the remuneration report, management commentary and the
annual governance statement were all consistent with the financial statements
and properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and guidance
12. We have nothing to report in respect of misstatements in information other than
the financial statements, the adequacy of accounting records, or the information
and explanations we received.

Submission of the annual accounts for audit
13. We received the unaudited annual accounts on 10 June 2019 in line with the
audit timetable set out in our 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan.
14. The working papers provided with the unaudited accounts were of a good
standard and finance staff provided good support to the audit team during the
audit. This helped ensure that the audit of the annual accounts process ran
smoothly.

Risk of material misstatement
15. Appendix 2 provides a description of those assessed risks of material
misstatement in the annual accounts and the audit work undertaken to gain
assurance over the outcome of these risks. We have no issues to report from our
work on these risks.
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Materiality
16. Misstatements are material if they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken based on the financial statements. The
assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and involves
considering both the amount and nature of the misstatement.
17. Our initial assessment of materiality for the annual accounts was carried out
during the planning phase of the audit and is summarised in Exhibit 2. With regard
to the annual accounts, we assess the materiality of uncorrected misstatements
both individually and collectively.
18. On receipt of the annual accounts we reviewed our planning materiality
calculations and concluded that they remained appropriate.

Exhibit 2
Materiality values
Materiality level

Amount

Overall materiality

£2,800

Performance materiality

£2,100

Reporting threshold

£140

Source: Audit Scotland, Annual Audit Plan 2018/19

Significant findings from the audit in accordance with ISA 260
19. International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 requires us to communicate
significant findings from the audit to those charged with governance, including our
view about the qualitative aspects of the body’s accounting practices covering
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statements disclosures.
20. Going concern - The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 received Royal assent in
July 2019. While the statutory function to produce a Strategic Development Plan
has been replaced by Regional Spatial Strategies, the status of the authority has
not been affected by the changes introduced by the Act. It is anticipated that a
strategic planning function will be required to produce the Regional Spatial
Strategy and therefore it is likely that that the authority will have a contribution to
make. It is therefore appropriate to conclude that the authority will continue to
operate. With regard to the 2018/19 annual accounts, there are no going concern
matters arising.

Qualitative aspects of the audit
21. We have no significant findings to report around the qualificative aspects of the
2018/19 accounting practices

How we evaluate misstatements
22. It is our responsibility to request that all misstatements, other than those below
the reporting threshold, are corrected although the final decision on making the
correction lies with those charged with governance considering advice from senior
officers and materiality. T
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23. There is a requirement to accrue untaken holiday leave in the annual accounts.
Due to an omission, the accrual had not been calculated and accrued. The accrual
in respect of the three staff seconded to the authority would have been £1,400 in
respect of 2018/19. Having discussed the matter with Finance, on the basis of
materiality, the accounts are not going to amended and we are content with this
approach. Had the accounts been adjusted, staff costs in the comprehensive
income and expenditure account and creditors in the balance sheet would have
increased by £1,400
24. Otherwise, there were a number of presentational changes agreed in respect of
the accounts. No other misstatements were identified and there are no further
unadjusted errors which require to be reported.

Management commentary, annual governance statement and
remuneration report
25. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19 requires local government bodies to prepare and publish, along with their
financial statements, an annual governance statement, management commentary
(or equivalent) and a remuneration report that are consistent with the disclosures
made in the financial statements. The management commentary should be fair,
balanced and understandable and clearly address the longer-term financial
sustainability of the body.
26. Based on our knowledge and work performed, we concluded that the content of
the management commentary, annual governance statement and remuneration
report are consistent with the financial statements.

Follow up of prior year recommendations
27. The authority has yet to address the prior year recommendation to reflect the
requirements of the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 in the
Financial Regulations. This largely relates to the statutory requirements around the
preparation and audit of the annual accounts. update the financial Regulations to
be updated to reflect the requirements of the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2014 in respect of the annual accounts. Revised regulations are due
to be considered at the next meeting of the authority.
28. In response to our second recommendation covering the authority’s
governance arrangements and the effectiveness review required by the Delivering
Good Governance Framework, the authority approved a local Code of Governance
in June 2019. Plans are in place for an annual review of the arrangements to be
undertaken as part of the preparatory work for the authority’s annual governance
statement.
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Part 2
Governance, transparency and financial sustainability

Main judgement
Governance arrangements will be enhanced through regular review of
the operation of the local code of corporate governance.
The authority experiences financial stability through the continued
commitment from partner authorities.

Governance arrangements
29. The authority was designated under the Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006 and
required Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils to jointly prepare, and keep
under review, a strategic development plan for the strategic development plan
area.
30. The authority has 12 members, six each from Aberdeen City and
Aberdeenshire Councils and it met on four occasions during 2018/19. We review
minutes and periodically observe meetings for a greater insight into proceedings.

Internal controls
31. On an annual basis, the authority is required to review its system of internal
control prior to its approval of the annual governance statement. In practice, the
authority uses the financial systems of Aberdeenshire Council and therefore draws
assurance from the council’s chief internal auditor’s review of the council’s
systems.
32. As part of our audit we identify and inspect the key internal controls in those
accounting systems which we regard as significant to produce the financial
statements. As outlined above, the authority relies on the financial systems of
Aberdeenshire Council. In accordance with ISA 402: Audit considerations relating
to an entity using a service organisation; we obtained assurances from the external
auditor of Aberdeenshire Council as part of our planned audit approach. We are
satisfied there were no significant weaknesses in the systems of internal control
which would have a material impact on the authority. .

Internal audit
33. The authority’s internal auditor is Aberdeenshire Council’s chief internal auditor.
In respect of 2018/19, he concluded that reasonable assurance could be taken
from the financial controls the authority has in place based on his programme of
work on council systems.
34. As external auditors for the council, we concluded that internal audit operated
in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and has sound
documentation, standards and reporting procedures in place.
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concerned with
the
effectiveness of
scrutiny and
governance
arrangements,
leadership and
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financial and
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information.
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Financial management
35. Financial management is about financial capacity, sound budgetary processes
and whether the control environment and internal controls are operating effectively.
It is the authority’s responsibility to ensure that its financial affairs are conducted in
a proper manner.
36. As auditors, we need to consider whether audited bodies have established
adequate financial management arrangements. We do this by considering a
number of factors, including whether:
• the Treasurer has sufficient status to be able to deliver good financial
management
• financial regulations and standing orders are comprehensive, current and
promoted within the authority
• reports monitoring performance against budgets are accurate and provided
regularly to budget holders.
37. Overall, financial management is considered to be satisfactory, with appropriate
monitoring reports being regularly scrutinised at meetings of the authority.

Transparency
38. Transparency means that the general public have access to understandable,
relevant and timely information about how the authority is taking decisions and how
it is using resources such as money, people and assets.
39. There is evidence from several sources which demonstrate the authority’s
commitment to transparency:
•

members of the public can attend meetings of the authority

•

minutes and agenda papers are readily available on the authority’s website

•

the website allows the public to access a wide range of information about
business activities including plans and monitoring reports

•

the authority makes its annual accounts available on its website. .

40. Overall, we concluded that the authority conducts its business in an open and
transparent manager.

Financial performance in 2018/19
41. The authority set its 2018/19 budget in March 2018 with planned funding from
partner councils largely being maintained at the same level as previous years.
Expenditure levels are generally relatively stable each year at approximately
£150,000. Partners are therefore able to commit to maintain their contribution
levels which provide a degree of financial stability for the authority. The financial
outturn for the year was in line with the approved budget.
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Appendix
Significant audit risks identified during planning
The table below sets out the audit risks we identified during our planning of the
audit and how we addressed each risk in arriving at our conclusion. The risks are
categorised between those where there is a risk of material misstatement in the
annual accounts and those relating our wider responsibility under the Code of Audit
Practice 2016.

Audit risk

Assurance procedure

Results and conclusions

Risks of material misstatement in the financial statements
1

Risk of management override of
controls
ISA 240 requires that audit
work is planned to consider the
risk of fraud, which is presumed
to be a significant risk in any
audit. This includes
consideration of the risk of
management override of
controls to change the position
disclosed in the financial
statements.

•

Detailed testing of journal
entries

•

Review of accounting
estimates

•

Focused testing of
accruals and
prepayments

•

Evaluation of significant
transactions that are
outside the normal
course of business.
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Audit work concluded
satisfactorily. No areas of
concern identified.
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Aberdeen City and Shire
Strategic Development
Planning Authority
2018/19 Annual Audit Report
If you require this publication in an alternative
format and/or language, please contact us to
discuss your needs: 0131 625 1500
or info@audit-scotland.gov.uk
For the latest news, reports
and updates, follow us on:

Audit Scotland, 4th Floor, 102 West Port, Edinburgh EH3 9DN
T: 0131 625 1500 E: info@audit-scotland.gov.uk
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk
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Agenda Item 4

Item:
Page: 1

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date:

25 September 2018

Title:

AUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2018/19

1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report submits the audited Annual Accounts for 2018/19 to be approved
by the Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) for signature.

2

Background

2.1

Local Authorities and similar bodies are required to ensure that they
demonstrate proper stewardship of their financial affairs. The Annual Accounts,
together with the opinion expressed by the independent auditor on the activities
of the Authority, is designed to meet these requirements.

2.2

The independent auditor for the Authority, Audit Scotland, has expressed an
unmodified opinion on these Statements and this is detailed in pages 14 to 17
of Appendix 1, the Annual Accounts.

2.3

It is also a requirement of the governing regulations that the audited financial
statements will be made available for public inspection. The audited Annual
Accounts and the auditor’s report will be available on the Authority’s website
and can be accessed and downloaded free of charge.

3

Statement of Accounts 2018/19

3.1

The audited Annual Accounts is attached as Appendix 1, is prepared in
accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the UK.
The document comprises a number of statements, but Members’ attention is
drawn to the following main items in particular:

3.2

Page

2-6

Management Commentary

Page

14 - 17

Independent Auditor’s Report

Page

18

Movement in Reserves Statement

Page

20

Balance Sheet showing the SDPA audited financial
position as at 31 March 2019.

Other prescribed financial statements are included as required along with
supporting notes to the statements where these are considered appropriate.
There are no Group Accounts to be commented upon.
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3.3

Regular budget monitoring statements had been produced throughout the year
and it had been anticipated that the budget would be underspent, largely due
to a reduced need to employ third party contractors for discrete elements of
work.

3.4

The actual costs of the SDPA, as well as the contributions from the partner
Councils, were £145,000 which is £3,000 greater than the budgeted amounts.
The table on page 3 of the audited Accounts provides details of the actual
performance of the major income and expenditure headings compared to the
budgeted level of activity.

3.5

The independent auditor’s report to the Authority, which is included as a
separate item on the agenda, is an important aspect of the auditor’s work in
expressing an opinion on the Annual Accounts. The report covers the principal
matters or issues that have arisen from the audit process and provides a useful
commentary on the Authority’s performance, corporate governance and best
value achievement as well as a review of areas of significant audit risk. The
report is very positive and attests to the strengths of the systems and controls
we have in place to manage the financial activities of the Authority. There are
no outstanding issues which have to be addressed.

4.

Recommendations

4.1

The Authority is recommended to:
1

Acknowledge Audit Scotland’s unmodified opinion on the Annual
Accounts for 2018/19

2

Approve for signature the audited Annual Accounts for 2018/19

Alan Wood
Treasurer
17 September 2019
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

Introduction
The "Strategic Development Planning Authority" was designated by Scottish Government
Ministers on 25 June 2008 under the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006. The Strategic
Development Planning Authority has 12 members, with six being appointed by both Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire Councils. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Strategic Development
Planning Authority rotate on a 2 yearly cycle.
The Designation Order required Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils to jointly prepare
and keep under review a Strategic Development Plan for a strategic development plan area.
Such a plan sets out a vision for long term development focusing on cross boundary issues
such as the amount and areas for housing, business and retail development, infrastructure
provision and green belts. The terms of reference agreed by the two Councils required that,
prior to the start of work on a Strategic Development Plan, the Strategic Development Planning
Authority would take forward work on a Structure Plan commenced by the two Councils in
early 2007. The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan was approved by Scottish Ministers
in August 2009.
Scottish Ministers approved the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan on 28
March 2014. Section 10(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 requires
that, where there is a current Strategic Development Plan, a Proposed Strategic Development
Plan must be submitted to Scottish Ministers within 4 years after the date on which the current
plan was approved. From 28th March 2018, the existing Strategic Development Plan was
beyond the 4 year period.
Officers wrote to Scottish Ministers asking that they use their Default Powers (under Section
23B of the 1997 Act) to instruct the Strategic Development Planning Authority to continue to
prepare the next Strategic Development Plan. On the 31 July the Scottish Ministers directed
the Strategic Development Planning Authority to continue to produce a Strategic Development
Plan.
In March 2018 the Strategic Development Planning Authority published its Development Plan
Scheme for 2018/2019. It outlined a programme of work which covered; the production and
consultation on a Main Issues Report, the production and consultation on a Proposed Strategic
Development Plan and submission of the Proposed Plan and its supporting documents to
Scottish Ministers for examination in public.
Work has been completed on the review of this Plan, and a Proposed Strategic Development
Plan was submitted to Scottish Ministers for Examination in April 2019. This Examination
commenced in June 2019 and should be concluded before the end of 2019.
Progress against Performance Indicators
The annual Planning Performance Framework Report, Aberdeen City and Shire | Strategic
Development Planning Authority - Publications, which is submitted to the Scottish Government
early in the financial year (30th July), gives a comprehensive overview of the achievements
and performance of the Strategic Development Planning Authority during the year. The
influence of a Strategic Development Plan has a longer timescale than one year and annual
indicators of performance are not considered appropriate. However, as part of the review of
the Strategic Development Plan 2014 a Monitoring Report was produced, Monitoring
Statement 2018. It considered the Strategic Development Plan 2014’s performance against a
number of its aspirational targets.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Performance - Progress in delivering Strategic Development Plan’s aspirational targets
The Strategic Development Plan 2014 set out an ambitious strategy for growth across the City
Region. The Plan promoted a generous level of employment and housing allowances coupled
with a drive towards sustainable development, efficient use of the region’s resources and
infrastructure investment. More detailed policy development is taken forward through both the
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Local Development Plans.
Below are a number of the Strategic Development Plan 2014’s aspirational targets and how
they have been progressed since the Plan’s implementation. Under Scottish Planning Policy,
Strategic Development Plans are to set a long-term vision for a City Region. The Strategic
Development Plan 2014 covered the period up to 2035. As such the progress towards the
below aspirational targets are gauged at an early point in the strategy which will be more
realised in the longer term.
Objective
Economic
Growth

Target

•

•

At least 60
hectares of
marketable land
available to
businesses at all
times within
Aberdeen City and
Aberdeenshire
All new
developments to
have the use of
high-speed
telecommunication
s networks

Progress 2014 – 2019

The established employment land supply in
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire is robust.
There are 839 hectares of established and 532
hectares of marketable employment land.
More detail can be found in the Aberdeen City
and Shire Employment Land Audit 2017/18
which is approved by the Strategic
Development Planning Authority.
The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan
2017 includes policy CI1 - Digital Infrastructure
states “All new residential and commercial
development will be expected to have access to
modern,
up-to-date
high-speed
communications infrastructure.”
The Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan
2017 includes policy P5 Digital infrastructure.
It is evident that there is a challenge in
providing access to fast broadband in rural
areas. The Rest of Scotland programme
addressed some of these areas with the aim
to provide fast broadband speeds to areas that
are poorly served by fibre connectivity. This
has been superseded by the R100
programme which is set to follow. It is an
unfortunate reality that there will be rural areas
that are just not commercially viable for
operators to invest in. However, there are
other technologies out there that can address
this. To this end the Strategic Development
Plan 2014 supports the development of highgigabit speed telecommunication networks
through the use of multiple technologies.
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Direction
of travel

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Sustainable
development
and climate
change

•

All new buildings to
be carbon neutral
by 2020

The Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan
2017 includes Policies C1 Using resources in
buildings and C2 Renewable energy which seek
to reduce emissions in new buildings and
promote the use of renewable energy.
The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan
2017 includes policies R7 - Low and Zero
Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency and R8
Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
Developments.

Population
growth

•

For the equivalent
of the city region’s
electricity needs to
be met from
renewable sources
by 2020.

•

Increase the
population of the
city region to
500,000 by 2035

•

Move towards
building at least
2,500 homes a
year by 2016 and
at least 3,000 by
2020

These policies are monitored and reviewed
during the review of both Local Development
Plans.
While new onshore renewable generation has
slowed over recent years, two offshore
windfarms Hywind, off Peterhead, and
EOWDC,
off
Aberdeen,
have
added
approximately 356GWh to the supply annually.
In addition to this, there are two consented
offshore windfarms which are yet to start
construction but would add 3,059GWh annually.
The MORL (East) development is the most
significant of these and it received ‘Contract for
Difference’ support from the UK Government in
September 2017. When completed over the
next few years, these offshore developments
would mean the region would produce the
equivalent of over 175% of its electricity
consumption needs.
The population of City Region reached 480,000
in 2012 and was estimated to be 489,030 in
2018 (NRS).
However; National Records for Scotland 2018
mid-year
estimates currently show 3
consecutive years of population decline for
Aberdeen City and two consecutive years of
population decline for Aberdeenshire.
This aspiration to move towards building at least
2,500 homes a year by 2016 through the
development plan has not become a reality.
This is not due to land supply allocated through
the Development Plan as there is currently an
effective land supply of over 34,000 homes
according to the Aberdeen City and Shire
Housing Land Audit 2019. Completions have
been increasing year on year since 2012 which
approximately 2,200 homes being delivered in
2018. Rather current market demand has set
the tone for delivery rates. Should delivery
increase there is a robust land supply to
accommodate.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Quality of the
environment

Sustainable
mixed
communities

•

To ensure that
development does
not lead to the loss
of, or damage to,
built, natural or
cultural heritage
assets

•

Avoid new
development
preventing water
bodies achieving
good ecological
status under the
Water Frameworks
Directive.

•

For 40% of all new
housing in
Aberdeen City to
be on brownfield
sites

The Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan
2017 includes policies E1: Natural heritage and
E2; Landscape which seek to protect and
enhance the natural environment. Policies
HE1: Protecting listed buildings, sites and
monuments and HE2: Protecting historic and
cultural areas seek to do the same for cultural
heritage.
The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan
2017 includes the Policy NE8: Natural Heritage
which champions the protection, preservation
and enhancement of natural heritage. This is
complemented by Policies D4: Historic
Environment and D5 - Our Granite Heritage
which seek to protect and enhance built
heritage.
These policies are monitored and reviewed
during the review of both Local Development
Plans.
The majority of water bodies achieved the same
ecological status in 2014 as they did in 2013.Of
the bodies that changed, the number achieving
a degraded ecological status increased by 28
and the number achieving an improved status
was 16, so there was a net decrease in quality
of water bodies. While this net decrease cannot
necessarily be attributed to development or the
plan’s strategy, progress towards this target is
nonetheless negative.
The Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Land
Audit indicated that 17% of the Aberdeen City
established land supply is on brownfield sites.
There is also large constrained sites which are
located on brownfield sites which may come
forward for development over the life of the
Strategic Development Plan.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)

Accessibility

•

For new housing to
include appropriate
levels of affordable
housing (around
25%) and mix of
types and sizes of
homes.

•

For major
employment and
service
developments to
show they are easy
to access by
walking, cycling or
using public
transport.

Affordable housing schemes are generally
delivered in tranches or programmed with
phased releases. Completions by housing
developers and RSLs are outwith the direct
control of Councils.
The result of this is variable yearly completion
rates whereby some years may record high
levels of completions and others lower levels of
completions. With the exception of 2014/15 and
2016/17 it shows a steady increase year on year
of affordable home completions across both
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils.
These two years have reduced the average to
380 new affordable homes per year for the
period. However, due to the SDP 2014’s
generous housing land allowances a pattern of
increasing rates of affordable housing delivering
is beginning to emerge. In 2016/17 340 units
were delivered and this has increased to 564
units in 2018/19.
The Strategic Development Plan 2014 carried
forward the spatial strategy promoted by the
Structure Plan 2009. It focuses new
development in areas which will benefit from
new and planned infrastructure improvements.
Since the approval of the SDP 2014 there has
been considerable investment in road and rail.
The Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route
(AWPR) has now opened, coupled with the dual
carriageway
to
Balmedie.
Work
has
commenced on the upgrade to the Haudigain
roundabout and the Laurencekirk grade
separated junction. Kintore station should be
operational by 2020.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
•

To reduce the
percentage of
journeys made by
car.

An important issue for the plan has been the
promotion of the link between spatial planning
and transport infrastructure. This requires
facilitating development which encourages
walking, cycling and public transport. In order to
do this development must be focussed in areas
well serviced by public transport.
The most recent data relating to this is from
2009/10 and it can be safely assumed that,
since this was collected, the number of stops
has increased as well as the density of
development in proximity to existing and new
stops.
The Scottish Household Survey (SHS), shows
that accessibility by bus is much greater in
Aberdeen than in Aberdeenshire due to their
urban and rural characteristics. In Aberdeen
City, 77.4% live within six minutes’ walk of a bus
service of at least three per hour – the
equivalent figure for Aberdeenshire is 21.5%.
The most recent population data is from 2012.
When compared to the previous analysis we
can see that there has been an increase of
6,263 people within 1.6km of a train station and
15,492 within 5km of a station, or 6.5% and 6%
increase. This means that there has been a
greater upswing in population closer to stations.

There is ongoing analysis of key trend areas over time to consider the appropriateness of the
plan and inform its review and production of subsequent plans.
The Strategic Development Plan, Housing Land Audit and Employment Land Audit all highlight
the aspirational nature of the Strategic Development Planning Authority. Significant quantities
of land are now available to the development industry as a result of the strategic framework
and Spatial Strategy set by the Strategic Development Planning Authority.
The Strategic Development Planning Authority has been awarded a number Plain English
Campaign “Crystal Marks” which recognises the quality of the communications issued. The
authority’s website allows interested parties access to the most up to date information on
Strategic Development Plan preparation.
No performance indicators have been specifically identified to measure financial performance.
However, the Strategic Development Planning Authority agrees a budget in advance of each
year and considers a detailed budget monitoring report with a forecast for the year of income
and expenditure at each meeting. This allows regular and close scrutiny of activities against
specific financial targets to take place and is considered adequate for this organisation.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)

Financial Performance Review
The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s core funding and the support for its strategic
programme from partner Councils reflects their continued support. The budget provision was
£142,000 (2017/18: £410,000).
Financial Performance 2018/19
The outturn for 2018/19 was 2% over budget. The total operating expenses were £145,000
which is £3,000 over budget. In 2018/19 the Strategic Development Planning Authority had
three members of staff which comprised a Team Leader seconded from Aberdeen City, one
permanent Senior Planner and one Senior Planner seconded from Aberdeenshire Council.
Additional staff were seconded to aid the speedy production of a Proposed Strategic
Development Plan in line with the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s Development
Plan Scheme 2018/19. Costs other than staffing related to the printing of the Main Issues
Report and the Proposed Strategic Development Plan for consultation purposes.
In 2017/18 the Strategic Development Planning Authority had two permanent members of
staff; the Strategic Development Planning Authority Manager and one Senior Planner. During
2017/18 the Supreme Court Appeal on the Strategic Transport Fund was decided in the
Appellant’s favour. As such the majority of the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s
and the Appellant’s legal costs were settled in 2017/18. Final costs were agreed and cleared
in 2018/19 but had been fully provided for in 2017/18 figures.

Fuller details of the performance against budget is detailed below.

2017/18
Actual

2018/19
Budget

2018/19
Actual

£000

£000

£000

%
Actual
v
Budget

Partner Council Requisitions
Other Income / Reserves

314
137

142
-

145
-

102%
0%

Total Income

451

142

145

102%

Staff Costs
Other Costs

137
314

118
24

135
10

114%
(42%)

Total Operating Expenses

451

142

145

102%

-

-

-

Net Surplus/(Deficit)
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the Strategic Development Planning Authority, as with many such
bodies, is the reliance on third party funding to support its annual programme.
The relationships with partners are close and each local authority partner has identified
indicative budgets for the contributions for the next 5 years. Both local authority partners have
appointed senior members of their staff to act as professional advisors and each has provided
professional Officers to support the Strategic Development Planning Authority Team. This
ensures engagement is maintained between parties at a senior corporate level.
We are confident that all material risks facing the Strategic Development Planning Authority
are known and that appropriate measures are in place to overcome or at least mitigate the
impact that these may have on the continued operation of the Authority.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
In addition, and particularly relevant to the Strategic Development Planning Authority, over the
last few years the Scottish Government has been reviewing the operation of the planning
system in Scotland. The Planning (Scotland) Bill was introduced in 2017 and proposed major
changes to the planning system through amendments to the existing legislation dating from
1997. The Bill was passed by the Scottish Parliament on 20 June 2019 and received Royal
assent on 25 July 2019. It has resulted in considerable changes for strategic planning which
are summarised below:
•

The National Planning Framework (NPF) now has enhanced status, and along with
the Local Development Plan forms the statutory ‘Development Plan’. It will set out
targets for housing land, national transport strategies and strategic projects. It will be
undertaken in consultation with Planning Authorities and key agencies with a 10-year
review cycle. The Scottish Ministers may at any time amend the National Planning
Framework.

•

The statutory function to produce a Strategic Development Plan has been replaced by
Regional Spatial Strategies. These are to be prepared by Planning Authorities alone
or jointly with other Authorities. This function could be facilitated through the Strategic
Development Planning Authority, as the status of the Authority has not been affected
by the changes of the Planning (Scotland) Act. Regard is to be given to an adopted
Regional Spatial Strategy in preparing the National Planning Framework/Local
Development Plan.

Although the statutory function to produce a Strategic Development Plan no longer exists, in
reality there will still be a need to maintain a strategic planning function to produce the Regional
Spatial Strategy and to support the development of the next National Planning Framework.
Scottish Ministers are considering transitional arrangements, particularly for development
planning, and expect to issue further interim advice on this before the end of 2019.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Main Trends and Factors Likely to Affect the Future Development, Performance and
Position of the Strategic Development Planning Authority's Business
The Strategic Development Plan was approved by Scottish Government Ministers in March
2014 and outlines the key issues that the Strategic Development Planning Authority will
contribute towards. This will influence the relationships and direction of travel that the Strategic
Development Planning Authority may follow. The Authority has submitted a replacement
Strategic Development Plan to the Scottish Government for Examination in Public. In
preparation for this, a Main Issues Report was prepared during the year and considered by
the board in February 2018 before a ten week consultation period commenced. The Main
Issues Report stimulated discussion and feedback and provided options for change on, for
example, key planning policies and locations for potential development. The Strategic
Development Planning Authority gave due consideration to submissions on the Main Issues
Report and these informed the preparation of the Proposed Strategic Development Plan. A
period of representation on the Proposed Strategic Development Plan ran from October to
December 2018. The Proposed Strategic Development Plan was submitted to Scottish
Ministers for Examination in April 2019.
This task was undertaken with the partner authorities, key agencies and relevant stakeholders.
Since December 2017 the Chief Officer Strategic Place Planning (Aberdeen City Council) and
Head of Service Planning and Building Standards (Aberdeenshire Council) have taken over
the management duties associated with the Strategic Development Planning Authority. Such
collaborative working will continue, with the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s agile
approach towards positioning itself to accommodate any significant changes affecting this
sector and in particular those that have been identified in the wider development plans for the
region.
Annual Accounts
The Strategic Development Planning Authority is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the
Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, which section 12 of the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the Code), supported by International
Financial Reporting Standards and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003
Act.
Going Concern
The removal of the requirement to produce Strategic Development Plans, and their
replacement with Regional Strategic Strategies, was confirmed on the 25 July when the
Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 received Royal Assent. However, the current commitment to
delivery of the proposed Strategic Development Plan 2018 through Examination and Approval
by Scottish Ministers remains and the Strategic Development Planning Authority remains
responsible for that work. Transitional arrangements on the implementation of the Planning
(Scotland) Act 2019 are expected to be published by the Scottish Government in the coming
months. This will give greater clarity of the requirements to produce Regional Strategic
Strategies.
Also, the budget for 2019/20, with funding levels in line with 2018/19 and indicative budgets
for 2020/21, confirm that sufficient funding is available beyond September 2021. The Board
therefore has a reasonable expectation that the Strategic Development Planning Authority will
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. It is therefore considered
appropriate to adopt a going concern basis for the preparation of these statements.
10
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Audit Information
The Strategic Development Planning Authority at the date of this report confirms that:
•
•

So far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Strategic
Development Planning Authority’s auditor is unaware; and
They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a member or officer in
order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s auditor is aware of that.

Remuneration Paid to the Auditor for Non-Audit Work
No remuneration was paid to the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s external auditor
for non-audit work during 2018/19.
Pension Liabilities
The Strategic Development Planning Authority does not employ staff of its own. During the
year, three officers were seconded by the partner councils to the planning authority and their
payroll costs were recharged accordingly. While such officers are members of the
Superannuation Scheme administered by Aberdeen City Council, the liability for their pension
related costs remains with the partner authorities as the employers and consequently, the
Strategic Development Planning Authority does not reflect a pension liability on its balance
sheet.
Events since the End of the Financial Year
The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 received Royal assent in July 2019. The status of the
authority has not been affected by the changes in the planning system introduced by the new
legislation. Additional information regarding this has can be found on Page 9. In terms of
financial reporting, there are no going concern matters arising for the 2018/19 annual
accounts.
We are not aware of any adjusting event that would have impacted on the reliability of the
information presented in this report or financial statements.
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Future Developments
Future developments will generally be identified from a change in Government or local
authority policy, changes in the development plan and / or wider economic changes in the
region. Close links are maintained with appropriate government departments and the Strategic
Development Plan is regularly refreshed which will ensure that arising issues are identified
early enough to allow any appropriate action to be taken to re-position the Strategic
Development Planning Authority and its activities.

Councillor Marie Boulton,
Chair

Gale Beattie,
Chief Officer,
Strategic Place Planning,
Aberdeen City Council

Robert Gray,
Head of Planning,
Aberdeenshire Council

25 September 2019
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Alan Wood,
MA (Hons),
CPFA,
Treasurer

REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction
For the purposes of the local authority accounts, a remuneration report is prepared in
accordance with the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014. These
Regulations require local authorities to make certain disclosures about the remuneration and
pension benefits of senior Councillors and senior employees employed by local authorities
alongside the local authority accounts. The Strategic Development Planning Authority does
not make payment to any member of the Strategic Development Planning Authority, whether
elected Member or otherwise appointed, by way of salary, enhanced pension benefits or
reimbursement of expenses.
The Treasurer and Clerk to the Strategic Development Planning Authority do not receive
remuneration from the Strategic Development Planning Authority. Since December 2017 the
Chief Officer Strategic Place Planning (Aberdeen City Council) and Head of Service Planning
and Building Standards (Aberdeenshire Council) have taken over the management duties
associated with the Strategic Development Planning Authority. The duties of these posts are
covered by the post holders’ substantive posts in their respective Councils.
The information disclosed in the tables below is subject to independent audit.

Arrangements for Remuneration
Staff remuneration in relation to their roles at the Strategic Development Planning Authority is
set by reference to national arrangements agreed by the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee
for Local Authority Services. There are no bonuses or performance related pay. Officers
receive business mileage and subsistence allowances in accordance with amounts either
agreed nationally by the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee or as approved locally by
Aberdeen City or Aberdeenshire Council and adopted by the Strategic Development Planning
Authority. Officers are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Remuneration of Relevant Persons

Remuneration for Year

David Jennings: Manager
(From 01 April 2017 to 30
November 2017)
Totals

Salary, Fees
or
Allowances
£’s

Compensation
for Loss of
Employment
£’s

Total
2018/19
£’s

Total
2017/18
£’s

-

-

-

72,685

-

-

-

72,685
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
Remuneration of Employees receiving more than £50,000
There were no Strategic Development Planning Authority employees who received more than
£50,000 remuneration for the year. (2017/18 – there was one employee who fell into the
£70,000 - £74,999 band.)

Pension Benefits
The term pension benefits covers in-year pension contributions for the employee by the
Authority and any named person’s accrued pension benefits, if still employed, at the reporting
date.

Pension Benefits of Relevant Persons
In-year pension
contributions
For year to For year to
31 March
31 March
2019
2018
£’s
£’s

Accrued annual
pension benefits
As at
As at
30 Nov 31 March
2019
2018
£’s
£’s

Accrued pension
Lump Sum
As at
As at
30 Nov 31 March
2019
2018
£’s
£’s

David
Jennings:
Manager

-

7,068

-

15,543

-

21,271

Totals

-

7,068

-

15,543

-

21,271

Notes:
All employees working for the Strategic Development Planning Authority are eligible to
become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.
The Local Government Pension Scheme provides defined benefits on retirement. The
pension is based on the member’s pensionable service (how long he or she has been a
member of the Local Government Pension Scheme) and his or her pay. For officers with
service before 1 April 2015 the pension is based on their final year’s salary. For most people,
with service up to 31 March 2009, the annual pension is calculated by dividing their pay by
80 (60 for service after 31 March 2009) and multiplying this by their total membership. For
service after the 31 March 2015, the annual pension uses a career average methodology
and is calculated by dividing the pensionable pay by 49 and adding this to their cumulative
pension account, this in turn will be adjusted in line with the cost of living.
Pensions payable are increased annually in line with changes in The Pensions (Increase) Act
1971 and Section 59 of the Social Security Pension Act 1975.
The lump sum, which is automatically paid when the person retires, for service up to 31 March
2009, is normally three times his or her annual pension and is tax-free. There is no automatic
lump sum for service after 31 March 2009. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension
for lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
A Scheme member’s contribution depends on his or her full-time equivalent pay. From 1 April
2009, a five tier contribution system was introduced with contribution from members being
based on how much pay falls into each tier. The tiers for 2018-2019 were adjusted slightly
from the 2017-2018 rates.
The tiers and rates are as follows:
Rates

2018/19

2017/18

5.50%
7.25%

Up to and including £21,300
Above £21,300 and up to £26,100

8.50%
9.50%

Above £26,100 and up to £35,700
Above £35,700 and up to £47,600

12.00%

Above £47,600

Up to and including £20,700
Above £20,700 and up to
£25,300
Above £25,300 and up to £34,700
Above £34,700 and up to
£46,300
Above £46,300

The value of the accrued benefits in the above table has been calculated on the basis of the
age at which the person will first become entitled to receive a full pension on retirement without
reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute
pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future
inflation.
For benefits that have been accrued up to 31 March 2015 that pension will be paid in full upon
retirement as long as the member has reached the age of 65. For benefits that are accrued
after the 1 April 2015 there may be a reduction if the member retires before their “Normal
Pension Age”.
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a
consequence of their total local government service, and not just their current appointment.
The above explanatory notes provide general information on the Local Government Pension
Scheme and do not override the provisions of the Scheme.

Councillor Marie Boulton,
Chair,
Strategic Development Planning
Authority.

Gale Beattie,
Chief Officer Strategic Place Planning,
Aberdeen City Council.

25 September 2019
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Strategic Development Planning Authority has a responsibility for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used appropriately. This would include making
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this responsibility the Strategic Development Plan Management Team and
Treasurer have put in place proper arrangements for the governance of resources, approved
by the Strategic Development Planning Authority. The Strategic Development Planning
Authority has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which ensures the accountability and
probity of officers. The Code is consistent with the principles and reflects the requirements of
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) in Local Government
(2016) as set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016).
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which
the Strategic Development Planning Authority is directed and controlled, and the activities
used to engage with and lead the community. It enables the Strategic Development Planning
Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Strategic Development Planning
Authority’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of
those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of corporate governance and internal financial control is based on a framework
of financial regulations, management information and appropriate delegation with
accountability. In particular, the system includes:•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s Scheme of Governance, comprising
Standing Orders, Delegations, Financial Regulations and Guidance;
Management information;
Performance and risk management;
Comprehensive financial management systems;
Periodic and annual financial reports;
Clearly defined expenditure guidelines; and
Periodic review of all financial procedures.

The corporate governance and internal control procedures are informed by:•
•
•
•

Feedback from Councillors and the Strategic Development Planning Authority Board in
carrying out its scrutiny role;
The work of the Officers within the Strategic Development Planning Authority;
Internal Audit & External Audit; and
Partner and stakeholder feedback.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
Review of Effectiveness
The review of the effectiveness of the governance framework, including the system of internal
control, is carried out throughout the year by various means involving:
•
•
•
•

•
•

Reports to the Board;
The Head of Legal and Governance who is the statutory Monitoring Officer in terms of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and provides legal advice to Councillors and
senior officers;
The Treasurer who has statutory responsibility for the Strategic Development Planning
Authority’s financial affairs in terms of Section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973. His responsibilities are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities;
Internal Audit which is an independent review function of the Strategic Development
Planning Authority and is responsible for the internal audit of all financial and non-financial
systems of the Strategic Development Planning Authority and both Aberdeen City and
Aberdeenshire Council; and
External organisations that carry out independent audits or inspections of the Strategic
Development Planning Authority. These include external audit by auditors appointed by
the Accounts Commission.
Self-assessment reviews undertaken by Partner authorities to demonstrate compliance
with their respective Codes of Governance.

The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance and the
related systems of internal financial control provide reasonable assurance that objectives will
be met. The Strategic Development Planning Authority adheres to the principles of
openness, integrity and accountability and takes all reasonable steps to ensure assets are
safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, procedures are practical
and adhered to and that material errors are either prevented or detected within a timely
period, and corrective action taken.
Progress continues to be made in respect of risk management. Risk Management is viewed
as essential in the context of financial governance. An increase in the awareness and
consequences of risk have become more prevalent within the Strategic Development
Planning Authority. The consideration of risk has been recognised in the budget setting
report and will be considered in all financial governance procedures.
The Strategic Development Planning Authority relies on the financial systems of
Aberdeenshire Council. Aberdeenshire Council’s Chief Internal Auditor has the responsibility
to review independently, and report to the Council’s Audit Committee annually on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The Chief Internal
Auditor reports that, in his opinion, based on his evaluation of the Council’s control
environment, reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control system in the year to 31 March 2019. On the basis of the Chief Internal
Auditor’s report to Aberdeenshire Council’s Audit Committee, we are satisfied that the
arrangements provide assurance, are adequate and are operating effectively.

Councillor Marie Boulton,
Chair.

Gale Beattie,
Chief Officer Strategic Place Planning,
Aberdeen City Council.

25 September 2019
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s Responsibilities
The Strategic Development Planning Authority is required to:
•
•

•
•

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this case,
that officer is the Treasurer to the Strategic Development Planning Authority;
ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that
legislation, in accordance with proper accounting practices (section 12 of the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003;
manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets; and
approve the Annual Accounts for signature.

I confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Authority at its
meeting on 25 September 2019.

Councillor Marie Boulton,
Chair.
25 September 2019
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The Treasurer’s Responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Strategic Development Planning
Authority’s Annual Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy/Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory
Committee Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Treasurer has:
•
•
•
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
complied with legislation; and
complied with the Code (in so far as it is compatible with legislation).

The Treasurer has also:
•
•

kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I certify that the Annual Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Strategic Development Planning Authority at the reporting date and the transactions of the
Strategic Development Planning Authority for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Alan Wood, MA (Hons), CPFA,
Treasurer.
25 September 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN CITY AND
SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY AND THE ACCOUNTS
COMMISSION

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements
I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts of Aberdeen City
and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority for the year ended 31 March 2019
under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial statements
comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and
adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19 (the 2018/19 Code).
In my opinion the accompanying financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2018/19 Code of the
state of affairs of the Authority as at 31 March 2019 and of its income and expenditure
for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 2018/19 Code; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973, The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and
the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.

Basis for opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the
Accounts Commission for Scotland. My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
my report. I was appointed under arrangements approved by the Accounts Commission on
10 April 2017. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is three years. I am independent
of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of
the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. Non-audit services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the
board. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require me to report to you where:
•

the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

•

the Treasurer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Risks of material misstatement
I have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, which is available from the Audit Scotland
website, the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that I identified and my
conclusions thereon.
Responsibilities of the Treasurer and Authority for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Treasurer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Treasurer is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed
inappropriate.
The Authority is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect
fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator,
the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size
of individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. I therefore
design and perform audit procedures which respond to the assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud.
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
Other information in the annual accounts
The Treasurer is responsible for the other information in the annual accounts. The other
information comprises the information other than the financial statements, the audited part of
the Remuneration Report, and my auditor’s report thereon. My opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission to the extent
explicitly stated later in this report.
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read all the
other information in the annual accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to
report in this regard.

Report on other requirements
Opinions on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission
In my opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in
accordance with The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014.
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•

the information given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that
report has been prepared in accordance with statutory guidance issued under the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003; and

•

the information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements
and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government: Framework (2016).

Matters on which I am required to report by exception
I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion:
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

•

the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

•

I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit.

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities
In addition to my responsibilities for the annual accounts, my conclusions on the wider scope
responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in my Annual Audit Report.

Use of my report
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with
paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.

Anne MacDonald CA
Senior Audit Manager
Audit Scotland
The Annexe
Woodhill House
Westburn Road
Aberdeen
AB16 5GB
27 September 2019
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
This Statement shows the movement in the year on reserves held by the Strategic
Development Planning Authority, analysed into 'usable’ reserves and ‘unusable’ reserves.
Usable reserves are those that can be applied to fund expenditure subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. Unusable
reserves include reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the revaluation
reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are
sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the line “Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”. The Strategic Development Planning
Authority does not have any unusable reserves.
There are no statutory or presentation adjustments between the Authority’s accounting basis
and funding basis. The income and expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is as reported in budget monitoring reports to the Strategic
Development Planning Authority. Consequently, an Expenditure and Funding Analysis is not
provided within these Annual Accounts.
The 'Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Strategic Development Planning Authority's services, more details of which are
shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
General
Fund

Unusable
Reserves

Total
Reserves

£000

Total
Usable
Reserves
£000

£000

£000

Balance at 31 March 2017
Surplus or (Deficit) on provision of
services
Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

137

137

-

137

(137)

(137)

-

(137)

(137)

(137)

-

(137)

Increase / (Decrease) in Year

(137)

(137)

-

(137)

Balance at 31 March 2018

-

-

-

-

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

-

-

-

-

Increase / (Decrease) in Year

-

-

-

-

Balance at 31 March 2019

-

-

-

-
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019
This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from grants or
requisitions. The Strategic Development Planning Authority receives contributions to cover
expenditure in accordance with agreements. This may be different from the accounting cost
and the effect on the General Fund is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

£000
£000
Expenditure Income

2017/18
£000
Net

Note

138

-

138 Staff Costs

310

-

310 Supplies and
Services

3
451

-

3 Other Costs
451 Cost of Services

-

(314)

Requisitions and
Non-Specific
(314) Grant Income
(Surplus) or
Deficit on
Provision of
137 Services

12

£000
£000
Expenditure Income

2018/19
£000
Net

135

-

135

7

-

7

3
145

-

3
145

-

(145)

(145)

-

Other
Comprehensive
Income and
- Expenditure

-

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
137 Expenditure

-
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and liabilities
recognised by the Strategic Development Planning Authority. The net assets of the Strategic
Development Planning Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by
the Strategic Development Planning Authority.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e.
those reserves that the Strategic Development Planning Authority may use to provide
services. The second category of reserves is unusable reserves, i.e. those that are not able
to be used to provide services. The Strategic Development Planning Authority does not have
any unusable reserves.

31 March 2018
£000
37
146
183

(183)
(183)

Note
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short Term Debtors
Current Assets
Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Current Liabilities

7
8

9

31 March 2019
£000
40
40
(37)
(3)
(40)

-

Net Assets

-

-

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

-

-

Total Reserves

-

The unaudited annual accounts were authorised for issue on 14 June 2019 and the audited
annual accounts were authorised for issue on 25 September 2019.

Alan Wood, MA (Hons), CPFA,
Treasurer.
25 September 2019
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Strategic
Development Planning Authority during the reporting period. The Statement shows how the
Strategic Development Planning Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash
flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Strategic Development Planning Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Strategic Development Planning
Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for
resources which are intended to contribute to the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting
claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Strategic
Development Planning Authority.

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000
Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services
Adjust net surplus or (deficit) on the provision
of services for non cash movements

(74)

(108)

Net cash flows from Operating Activities

(74)

(108)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(74)

(137)
29

-

145

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting period

37

37

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

(37)

No interest was received in either the current or prior year.
There were no investing or financing activities in either the current or prior year.
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Note

13

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Note 1 Accounting Policies
General Principles
The Annual Accounts summarises the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s
transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2019.
The Strategic Development Planning Authority is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the
Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, of which section 12 of the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003 require them to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.
The accounting convention adopted in the Annual Accounts is historical cost.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements.
Accruals and Income and Expenditure
Income and Expenditure activities are accounted for in the year in which they take place, not
simply when cash payments are made or received.
Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid,
a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset at one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument at another entity.
The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s Financial Assets are held as cash and cash
equivalents.
Financial Liabilities
The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s liabilities are shown as Creditors in the
Balance Sheet and are for less than 12 months, they are initially measured at fair value and
are subsequently carried at amortised cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31
March 2019.
Requisitions and Contributions
Requisitions and contributions relating to revenue expenditure are accounted for on an
accruals basis and recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as income except where the grant or contribution has a condition(s) (as opposed
to restriction) that the Strategic Development Planning Authority has not satisfied, in which
case it is recognised as a Creditor.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Strategic Development Planning Authority uses Aberdeenshire Council’s bank account
for financial transactions and the balance is invested in the Council’s Loans Fund. This
balance is repayable on demand and therefore treated as a cash equivalent and is included
in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March
2019.
Employee Benefits - Benefits Payable During Employment
The Strategic Development Planning Authority does not directly employ staff but reimburses
the employing authorities for staff costs paid including any pension related costs as they are
incurred.
Employee Benefits - Post-Employment Benefits
The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s staff are on secondment from Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire Council and as such are entitled to be members of the
Superannuation Scheme which is administered by Aberdeen City Council. This provides
staff with defined benefits upon their retirement, and the Strategic Development Planning
Authority contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of
members’ pensionable salaries.
The arrangements for the Superannuation scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits
cannot be identified specifically to the Strategic Development Planning Authority. The scheme
is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.
Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply
or service in accordance with the costing principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy. The total absorption costing principle is used with all overhead costs
identified within the Strategic Development Planning Authority accounts.
Reserves
The nature of Strategic Development Planning Authority operations precludes it from creating
reserves other than a General Fund. This Fund or general reserve captures all assets and
liabilities that are not assigned to a special purpose fund.
Value Added Tax
Value Added Tax is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement only
to the extent that it is irrecoverable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable that
occur between the end of the reporting period (the Balance Sheet date) and the date when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.
There are two types of events:
a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date
(adjusting events after the reporting period); and
b) those that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the Balance Sheet date (nonadjusting events after the reporting period).
The accounts are adjusted to reflect adjusting events after the reporting period and are not
adjusted to reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting period. Where a non-adjusting
event would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events
and the estimated financial effect.
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Annual
Accounts.
Note 2 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The adoption of the following accounting standards by the Code in 2019/20 will result in
changes in accounting policy:
•

Amendment to IAS40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property

•

IFRS12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the Scope of the
Standard

•

IAS28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Measuring an Associate of Joint
Venture at Fair Value

•

IFRIC22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

•

IFRIC23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

•

Amendments to IFRS9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation.

•

Introduction of International Financial Reporting Standard 16 Leases

It is not anticipated that these changes will have a material effect for the Strategic
Development Planning Authority.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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Note 3 New Accounting Standards effective in 2018/19
The following new standards, amendments and interpretations became effective in 2018/19
for the first time.
•

Amendment to International Financial Reporting Standard 8 Operating Segments

•

Amendment to International Financial Reporting Standard 9 Financial Instruments

•

International Financial Reporting Standard 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers became effective in January 2018

There is no material impact on the financial statements as a result of the above.
Note 4 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Treasurer has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Annual Accounts are:
•

There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government and
hence to funding for the Strategic Development Planning Authority. However, the
Treasurer has determined that the level of uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the activities of the Strategic Development Planning Authority might be
affected by the need to reduce levels of service provision. On this basis the Annual
Accounts continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Note 5 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty
The Annual Accounts do not contain any estimated figures that are based on assumptions
made by the Strategic Development Planning Authority about the future or that are otherwise
uncertain.
Note 6 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
The Annual Accounts were authorised for issue by the Treasurer to the Strategic Development
Planning Authority on 14 June 2019. Where events taking place before this date provided
information about conditions existing at 31 March 2019, the figures in the financial statements
and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
There have been no material events since the date of the balance sheet which necessitate
the revision of the figures in the financial statements or notes thereto including contingent
liabilities or assets.
The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 received Royal assent in July 2019. The status of the
authority has not been affected by the changes in the planning system introduced by the new
legislation. In terms of financial reporting, there are no going concern matters arising for the
2018/19 annual accounts. An update will be included in the 2019/20 annual accounts as
appropriate.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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Note 7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises:

Temporary Investment in the Aberdeenshire
Council Loans Fund

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

37

-

37

-

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

146

40

146

40

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

4
179

37
1
2

183

40

Note 8 Short Term Debtors

Other Local Authorities

Note 9 Short Term Creditors

Short Term Borrowing
Other Local Authorities
Other Entities and Individuals

Note 10 Reserves
Movements in the Strategic Development Planning Authority's usable reserves are detailed in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. The Strategic Development Planning Authority does
not have any unusable reserves.

Note 11 External Audit Costs
The Strategic Development Planning Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to
the audit of the Annual Accounts.

Fees payable in respect of external audit
Services

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

3

3

Note 12 Requisition Income
The Strategic Development Planning Authority credited the following requisitions to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
2017/18
2018/19
£000
£000
Credited to Requisitions and Non Specific Grant Income:
Requisition from Aberdeen City Council
Requisition from Aberdeenshire Council

157
157

72
73

314

145

Note 13 Cash Flow – operating activities
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements

Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for
non-cash movements
(Decrease) / Increase in Creditors
(Increase) / Decrease in Debtors
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

(137)

-

175
(146)
(108)

(180)
106
(74)

Note 14 Related Parties
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, which are
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Authority, or to be
controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers of
the Statements to assess the extent to which the Authority may have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently, or may have secured the capacity to limit another party’s
ability to bargain freely with the Strategic Development Planning Authority.
Members
Members have direct control over the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s financial
and operational policies and decision making. No allowances or fees have been paid to
Members in 2018/19 and there were no contracts awarded in which a Member had an interest.
Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council
Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council have a significant element of control over
the general operations of the Strategic Development Planning Authority. They provide a
significant element of funding through two specific grants and the elected Members that they
appoint to the managing Board of the Strategic Development Planning Authority can exert
significant influence on its operations and decision making processes. The amounts relating
to each Council are detailed below.

Aberdeenshire Council
Aberdeen City Council

Amounts received from
2017/18
2018/19
£000
£000
84
73
84
72

Amounts paid to
2017/18 2018/19
£000
£000
135
101
42

Amounts due
to/(from) as
at 31 March
2018
2019
£000
£000
(73)
(69)
(40)

Officers
The management of the Strategic Development Planning Authority is disclosed in the
remuneration report on pages 13 - 15 of this document. These officers have the responsibility
for planning, directing or otherwise controlling the activities of the Strategic Development
Planning Authority. Their scope of control is determined by reference to the scheme of
delegation and financial regulations adopted by the Strategic Development Planning
Authority. The Strategic Development Planning Authority is satisfied that appropriate controls
are in place to manage and monitor the activities of the key management personnel.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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Note 15 Financial Instruments
The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s financial instruments comprise both debtors
and creditors. All of these are for less than 12 months and are measured at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised cost which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March
2019.
There are no gains or losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement in relation to financial instruments.
Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments:
The Strategic Development Planning Authority has no material exposure to any of the
following financial risks:
•
•
•

Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due.
Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Strategic Development Planning Authority might not
have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments.
Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Strategic Development
Planning Authority as a result of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock
market movements.

The Strategic Development Planning Authority has reviewed all financial risks and does not
believe that it is required to make any provision within the financial statements for any financial
risk exposure.

Note 16 Pension Scheme Accounted for as a Defined Contribution Scheme
The Strategic Development Planning Authority’s staff are on secondment from Aberdeen City
and Aberdeenshire Council and as such are entitled to be members of the Superannuation
Scheme which is administered by Aberdeen City Council. This provides staff with defined
benefits upon their retirement, and the Strategic Development Planning Authority contributes
towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable
salaries.
For the purposes of the annual accounts it is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution
scheme.

Note 16 Pension Scheme Accounted for as a Defined Contribution Scheme (continued)
In 2018/19, the Strategic Development Planning Authority reimbursed Aberdeen City with
£5,803, and Aberdeenshire Council with £14,366, (£14,244 in 2017/18) in respect of
superannuation contributions representing 19.3% of pensionable pay (2017/18: 19.3%). The
employing authority is responsible for all pension payments related to “added years” it has
awarded, together with related increases.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
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EXPENDITURE
Supplies and Services
Includes legal costs, audit fees and consultants’ fees
INCOME
Requisitions:
Funding received from the constituent authorities.
OTHER
The Code
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
FAIR VALUE
Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. For land and
buildings, fair value is the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.
ECONOMIC COST
The total cost of performing an activity or following a decision or course of action.
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Agenda Item 5

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 25 September 2019
Title : Financial Regulations
1

Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Strategic Development Planning Authority to
approve the adoption of revised Financial Regulations.
2

Background

2.1 Following a recommendation in the 2017/18 Annual Audit Report by Audit
Scotland, presented to the September 2018 Meeting, a revised set of Financial
Regulations have been created.
3

Proposal

3.1 A set of Financial Regulations is attached as Appendix 1 to this report for
Members’ consideration.
3.2 As per the recommendation made by Audit Scotland, these revisions will update
the Financial Regulations to reflect the requirements of the most current
Regulations.
3.3 The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 has removed the requirement to produce
Strategic Development Plans which have been replaced by non-statutory
Regional Spatial Strategies. Transitional arrangements, secondary legislation or
the staffing resources required to produce Regional Spatial Strategies are
currently unknown.
3.4 During this transitional period the Strategic Development Planning Authority
management group will be responsible for the Financial Regulation of the
Strategic Development Planning Authority.
4

Recommendations

4.1 It is recommended that the Authority:
a) Notes the revision to the Strategic Development Planning Authority’s
Financial Regulations.

Alan Wood, Treasurer
August 2019

Report prepared by Kenny Oxton
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APPENDIX 1

ABERDEEN CITY AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT
PLANNING AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
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ABERDEEN CITY AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING
AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
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ABERDEEN CITY AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING
AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) has
Financial Regulations to ensure that all decisions are made within agreed budgets
and in the correct manner enabling proper, transparent and efficient financial
management of the SDPA. All officers and employees of the SDPA are subject to the
Financial Regulations.
This document provides guidance to officers on the proper procedures for
undertaking procurements for works, goods and services.
1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Financial regulations provide the framework for managing the SDPA’s
financial affairs and apply to every Member and employee of the SDPA or
anyone acting on its behalf.

1.2

All members and employees have a general responsibility for taking
reasonable action to provide for the security of assets under their control, and
for ensuring that the use of these resources is legal, properly authorised, and
provides value for money.

1.3

It shall be the responsibility of the Strategic Development Plan (SDP)
Manager / or Management Group to ensure that members of staff are aware
of, and comply with the requirements contained in, the Financial Regulations.

1.4

These Financial Regulations shall not be altered or suspended except by the
SDPA following consideration of a report from the Head of Finance of
Aberdeenshire Council (Treasurer) of the SDPA. Action contrary to the
approved Financial Regulations should not be taken prior to this
consideration.

1.5

A register of breaches of Financial Regulations will be maintained by the Chief
Internal Auditor (CIA). All breaches identified shall be notified to the CIA and
entered in the register. Monitoring of the register will be undertaken by
Aberdeenshire Council’s Management Team quarterly and the Committee
responsible for Audit every 6 months.
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2.

GENERAL

2.1

The Treasurer, as the “Proper Officer”, in terms of Section 95 of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973, shall be the adviser on financial matters
and shall be responsible for the proper administration of the SDPA’s financial
affairs.

2.2

The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall consult the Treasurer in
respect of any matter which is liable to materially affect the finances of the
SDPA before any provisional or other commitment is incurred or before
reporting thereon to the SDPA. Such consultations must be in writing, allowing
at least five clear working days for consultation.

2.3

The Financial Regulations will refer to the SDPA Manager / or Management
Group throughout the document as the officer responsible for the operational
activities of the SDPA. It is accepted that the wider Management Team which
will include the SDPA Manager, the Head of Planning and Infrastructure of
Aberdeen City Council and the Head of Planning Policy and Environment of
Aberdeenshire Council will have a role in ensuring that the SDPA applies and
complies with these Regulations.

2.4

The following principles shall be observed in the allocation of accounting
duties –
(a)

(b)

The duties of providing information regarding sums due to or from the
SDPA, and of calculating, checking and recording these sums, shall be
separated as completely as possible from the duty of collecting or
disbursing them.
Officers charged with the duty of examining and checking the accounts
of cash transactions shall not themselves be engaged in any of these
transactions.
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3.

FINANCIAL PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT
The SDPA needs to plan effectively and develop systems to enable scarce
resources to be allocated in accordance with carefully weighted priorities. The
SDPA’s Revenue Budget is the financial expression of the agreed plans and
policies.
Budget management ensures that once the budget has been approved by the
SDPA, resources allocated and procured are used for their intended purpose
and are properly accounted for. Budgetary control is a continuous process,
enabling the SDPA to review and adjust its budget targets during the financial
year. It also provides the mechanism that calls to account managers
responsible for defined elements of the budget.

3.1

Revenue Budget Preparation

3.1.1 The detailed form and timetable to be followed in respect of the Revenue
Budget shall be determined by the Treasurer subject to any direction of the
SDPA, and after such consultations with each Director of the Partner
Council’s Planning Service as may be necessary.
3.1.2 Estimates of income and expenditure on revenue account shall be prepared
by the Treasurer in conjunction with each Director. These estimates shall be
submitted to the SDPA, and when approved by that body, shall constitute the
Revenue Budget for the relevant financial year.
3.1.3 The responsibility for providing the services included in the Revenue Budget
shall lie with the SDPA Manager / or Management Group subject to any
relevant subsequent decisions made by the SDPA.
3.2

Revenue Budget Monitoring

3.2.1 The Treasurer shall furnish the SDPA Manager / or Management Group
periodically and on request information on actual expenditure and income
compared with the approved Budget. The Treasurer shall be entitled to
receive any clarification deemed necessary on any item of expenditure or
income and the manager shall correspondingly provide the Treasurer with
such information as he or she shall require from them.
3.2.2 The Treasurer shall report periodically to the SDPA on comparisons of actual
figures with profiled budget and, for the year as a whole, as soon as possible
after Accounts have been compiled. The SDPA shall be entitled to seek
explanations for any figures in the cost comparison which it deems require
special attention.
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3.3

Revenue Budget Management

3.3.1 The responsibility for ensuring that Revenue Budget provisions are not
exceeded shall rest with the SDPA Manger / or Management Group except
that this responsibility shall not extend to estimates for financing costs or
insurance premiums which are the responsibility of the Treasurer.
3.3.2 If it appears that the amount of any Revenue Budget head may be exceeded,
or the amount of any head of approved income may not be reached, and the
excess expenditure or shortfall in income cannot be met by the SDPA
Manager / or Management Group exercising his or her powers of virement in
terms of Financial Regulation 3.4 below, it shall be the duty of the SDPA
Manager after consultation with the Treasurer, to report fully to the SDPA.
3.3.3 Any proposal which would involve the incurring of additional expenditure not
allowed for in the approved Revenue Budget, shall be accompanied by a
report prepared, in consultation with the Treasurer, by the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group indicating that there is insufficient provision in the
Revenue Budget, or making proposals for virement as required by Financial
Regulation 3.4 below. Should virement not be possible, authorisation by way
of a Supplementary Estimate shall only be forthcoming after consideration of
the expenditure involved by the appropriate Committees of the partner
Councils.
3.4

Scheme of Virement
The scheme of virement is intended to enable the SDPA to manage budgets
with a degree of flexibility within the overall policy framework determined by
the SDPA, and therefore to optimise the use of resources. The term
“virement” refers to the switching of budgetary provision from one budget
grouping to another.

3.4.1 Virement may be exercised by the SDPA alone.
3.4.2 Limitations:Recurring items of expenditure cannot replace non-recurring savings.
Virement cannot be used to reinstate an item deleted by the SDPA during
Budget consideration.
3.4.3 Definitions:Budget Grouping means any single line in the detail section of the SDPA’s
approved Revenue Budget (e.g. Staff Costs, Administration costs.)

Page 70

3.4.4 When the SDPA Manager / or Management Group intends to vire, or to
submit a report to the SDPA suggesting virement, the proposals shall first be
notified to the Treasurer.
3.5

Accounting Policies and Abstract of Accounts
The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the SDPA’s Statement of
Accounts, in accordance with proper practices and as set out in the format
required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom (CIPFA/LASAAC), for each financial year ending 31 March.
Maintaining proper accounting records is one of the ways in which the SDPA
discharges its responsibility for stewardship of public resources. The SDPA
has a statutory responsibility to prepare its accounts to present fairly its
operations during the year.

3.5.1 In view of the above, it shall be the Treasurer’s responsibility to select suitable
accounting policies and to ensure that they are consistently applied to the
accounts relating to each financial year. It shall be the duty of the SDPA
Manager / or Management Group to maintain proper financial and accounting
records within the SDPA to demonstrate the adequate stewardship of public
resources. No such arrangements shall be introduced, discontinued or
amended without the approval of the Treasurer.
3.5.2 The Abstract of Accounts for the preceding financial year shall be prepared by
the 30 June following, or by such date as may be specified by Scottish
Ministers in regulations made under Section 105 of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973, and submitted, by that date, to the External Auditor and
to the SDPA for consideration by 31 August at the latest. Following
completion of the Audit, the Treasurer shall submit to the SDPA, by the 30
September, for approval and signing a copy of the Abstract together with the
External Auditor’s report thereon. Thereafter, the audited accounts and the
auditor’s annual report are to be published on the authority’s website by 31
October.
3.5.3 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall be responsible for ensuring
that the staff in his or her Service affords to the Treasurer such assistance as
is necessary to ensure that the deadlines agreed with the Treasurer for the
completion of the Annual Accounts are complied with.
3.5.4 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall provide to the Treasurer
any information on Statutory Performance Indicators specified for his or her
service in time to meet the Audit requirements and the statutory timetable of
publication of Performance Indicators.
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4.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF RESOURCES
All organisations face risks to people, property and continued operations. Risk
is the chance or possibility of loss, damage, injury or failure to achieve
objectives caused by an unwanted or uncertain action or event. Risk
management is the planned and systematic approach to the identification,
evaluation and control of risk. Its objectives are to secure the assets of the
organisation and to ensure its continued financial and organisational wellbeing.

4.1

Internal Control
Internal controls are the mechanisms put in place by management to: manage
and monitor progress towards the organisations strategic objectives; ensure
compliance with legislation, regulations and policies; ensure that operations
are efficient and effective; ensure that financial information and reporting is
reliable; and to protect the organisations assets and resources.

4.1.1 It shall be the responsibility of the Treasurer to assist the SDPA to put in place
an appropriate control environment and effective internal controls which
provide reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations, financial
stewardship, probity and compliance with laws and regulations.
4.1.2 It shall be the SDPA Manager’s / or Management Group’s responsibility to
ensure that the established controls are being adhered to, to seek guidance
from the Treasurer and the Chief Internal Auditor when it is identified that
controls require change and to advise of identified failures to comply with
established controls
4.1.3 It shall be the SDPA Manager’s / or Management Group’s responsibility to
ensure an annual review of the code of governance is carried out, and that
this is confirmed in the annual governance statement in the accounts.
4.2

Insurances and Indemnities
One of the tools used in managing risk is the arranging of suitable insurance
cover. This assists in lessening the likelihood of financial burden on the
organisation in the event of loss and helps in the management of expenditure.

4.2.1 It shall be the responsibility of the Treasurer to effect all insurance cover and
negotiate all claims in consultation with other officers where necessary.
4.2.2 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall give prompt notification to
the Treasurer of all new risks, properties and equipment which require to be
insured and of any alterations affecting existing insurances.
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4.2.3 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall immediately notify the
Treasurer in writing of any loss, liability or damage or any event likely to lead
to a claim, and inform the police if he or she considers that criminal activity
may have taken place. Where a direct compensation payment is being
considered as an alternative to the submission of an insurance claim the
Director concerned will seek, in writing, agreement of the Head of Finance
prior to payment which will be subject to the limits set out in the Scheme of
Governance.
4.2.4 The Treasurer shall annually, or at such other period as may be considered
necessary, review all insurances in consultation with the SDPA Manager and
others as appropriate, and may report thereon to the SDPA if required.
4.2.5 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall consult the Treasurer and
the appropriate legal service officers respecting the terms of any indemnity
which the SDPA is requested to give.
4.3

Treasury Management
The SDPA does not involve itself directly in Treasury Management. This role
is performed by Aberdeenshire Council on its behalf and this function is
exercised by the Council as a small part of its wider Treasury management
role. The SDPA will place reliance on the practices adopted by the Council for
this function and the Councils financial regulation is detailed here for noting.
Many millions of pounds pass through the Council’s accounts each year.
Because of this, codes of practice have been established which aim to
provide assurances that Council money is properly managed in a way that
balances risk with return, but with the overriding consideration being given to
the security of assets.

4.3.1 The recommendations of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public
Services described in Section 4 of that Code shall be adhered to by the
Council. Section 4 of the Code contains four key recommendations relating to
the policies and practices to be adopted by local authorities, reporting
arrangements, the management and control of risk and best value.
4.3.2 Accordingly, the Council will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for
effective treasury management:
A treasury management policy statement, stating the policies and objectives
of its treasury management activities, suitable treasury management
practices, setting out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve
those policies and objectives, these to be maintained by the Treasurer.
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4.3.3 The content of the policy statement and treasury management practices will
follow the recommendations contained in sections 6 and 7 of the Code,
(subject only to amendment where necessary to reflect the particular
circumstances of the Council. Such amendments will not result in the Council
materially deviating from the Code’s key recommendations).The Council shall
set out its strategy and procedures to ensure compliance with the Code in a
Treasury Management Policy Statement and this shall be monitored by the
Policy Committee responsible for Finance.
4.3.4 The Policy Committee responsible for Finance will receive reports on treasury
management policies and practices, including an annual strategy and plan in
advance of the year. The Treasurer shall report, through the Policy Committee
responsible for Finance Bulletin, on the activities of the Treasury Management
operation and on the exercise of Treasury Management powers delegated to
him/her. Within the Statement of Accounts, he/she shall report on the
Treasury Management activities for the previous financial year.
4.3.5 The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and monitoring of
its treasury management policies and practices to the Policy Committee
responsible for Finance and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions to the Treasurer. The Treasurer will act in accordance
with the Council’s policy statement and treasury management practices and
CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management.
4.3.6 The Treasurer shall normally act as a Registrar for all Stock, Bonds, Bills etc.,
and shall maintain records of all monies borrowed by the Council. Where
required to facilitate a particular method of borrowing, the Council’s Banker or
other agent approved by the Policy Committee responsible for Finance may
be appointed Registrar.
4.4

Banking Arrangements

4.4.1 At this time it is not considered appropriate for the SDPA to enter into
separate banking arrangements. Aberdeenshire Council administers all
financial transactions through its own systems and transactions are recorded
through its own current banking arrangements. The SDPA does not require
overdraft, borrowing or lending facilities but will rely on Aberdeenshire Council
to administer this function in accordance with its own financial regulations.
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4.5

Staffing
In order to provide the highest level of service, it is crucial that the SDPA
recruits and retains high calibre, knowledgeable staff, qualified to an
appropriate level.

4.5.1 It shall be the responsibility of the SDPA Management Team to ensure that
the SDPA’s Policy in relation to the recruitment and selection of staff is fully
complied with and that all other Personnel Policies approved by the SDPA are
adhered to.
4.5.2 Appointments of all employees shall be made in accordance with approved
establishments, grades, and rates of pay. The SDPA Management Team shall
have discretion as to the incremental salary point on which employees are to
be placed within the approved salary scale for the post, subject to the
existence of sufficient provision in the Revenue Budget.
4.6

Internal Audit
The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is implied by
section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, which specifies that
every local Authority “shall make arrangements for the proper administration
of their financial affairs and shall secure that the proper officer has
responsibility for those affairs”. Scottish Office Circular 5/85 states that
“effective internal audit cover is regarded as a matter of good practice.”

4.6.1 A continuous internal audit, under the independent control and direction of the
Director of Business Services of Aberdeenshire Council, shall be arranged to
carry out a continuous review and appraisal of the internal controls of the
SDPA and prepare such reports on these as may be required or appropriate.
Work will be planned to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
and shall be undertaken in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom. Such Internal Audit
work shall not absolve management of the responsibility to ensure that all
financial transactions are undertaken in accordance with the SDPA's Financial
Regulations and Standing Orders and that adequate systems of internal
control exist to safeguard assets and secure the accuracy and reliability of
records.
4.6.2 It shall be the responsibility of the Board from time to time to assess the
efficiency and effectiveness of its internal auditing, in accordance with
applicable standards and practices. The Board should also consider the
sufficiency of assurance that SDPA draws from the auditors work on
Aberdeenshire Council’s systems generally.
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4.6.3 Internal Audit shall have authority to –
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Enter at all reasonable times any SDPA premises.
Have access to all records, documents and correspondence relating to
any financial and other transactions of the SDPA.
Require and receive such explanations as are necessary concerning
any matter under examination.
Require any employee of the SDPA to produce cash, equipment or any
other Council property under his or her control.

4.6.4 It shall be the responsibility of all staff to ensure that access and explanations
requested by Internal Audit are provided in a timely manner on all occasions.
4.6.5 The Chief Internal Auditor has the right to report direct to the SDPA in any
instance where he or she deems it inappropriate to report direct to the
Treasurer of Aberdeenshire Council or the Management Board.
4.6.6 Upon receipt of a report by the Chief Internal Auditor, the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group shall respond fully within one calendar month.
4.6.7 Where recommendations resulting from Internal Audit work are agreed, the
SDPA Manager shall ensure that these are implemented within the agreed
timescale. Regular progress reports will be sought by Internal Audit and it is
the responsibility of the SDPA Manager to ensure that these are provided
when requested along with explanations for those recommendations not
implemented within the agreed timescale.
4.7

Prevention of Fraud and Corruption
The SDPA will not tolerate fraud or corruption in the administration of its
responsibilities, whether from inside or outside the organisation. The SDPA’s
expectation of propriety and accountability is that members and officers at all
levels will lead by example in ensuring adherence to legal requirements, rules,
procedures and practices.

4.7.1 Whenever any matter arises which involves, or is thought to involve,
irregularities concerning cash, equipment or other property of the SDPA or
any suspected irregularity in the exercise of the functions of the SDPA, the
SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall immediately notify the
Treasurer and the Chief Internal Auditor of Aberdeenshire Council, as
appropriate, who shall take such steps as may be considered necessary by
way of investigation and report.
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4.7.2 In order to assist in the prevention of fraud and corruption appropriate internal
controls will be established in accordance with Financial Regulation 4.1.
4.7.3 All members and employees will be expected to comply with the SDPA’s
Disclosure of Information (Whistleblowing) and Anti-fraud and Corruption
Policies.

4.8

Hospitality

4.8.1 The SDPA Management Team shall be entitled to extend hospitality, subject
to adequate Revenue Budget provision up to £300 (excluding VAT) per
occasion.
4.8.2 When hospitality is estimated to cost in excess of £300, but not more than
£1,500 (exclusive of VAT) per occasion, written approval shall first be
obtained from the Chair and Vice Chair of the SDPA
4.8.3 Hospitality estimated to cost in excess of £1500 (exclusive of VAT) per
occasion shall require the prior approval of the SDPA.
4.8.4 Reasonable hospitality extended to Council and SDPA employees by current
or prospective clients, customers or suppliers, is an accepted practice, but the
acceptance of excessive hospitality or gifts, other than mere tokens, goes
beyond what is proper for a public official, regardless of whether such gifts
actually do, or are intended to, influence him or her in an official capacity. Any
such hospitality or gifts must be recorded in a register kept by the SDPA
Manager / or Management Group for that purpose.
4.8.5 Subject to 4.8.4, gifts may only be accepted by employees provided they fall
within the terms of the Inland Revenue Extra Statutory Concession
No.A70(A). This effectively limits the value of gifts to £250 including VAT.
4.8.6 Hospitality or gifts received by Councillors must be dealt with in accordance
with the Code of Conduct for Elected Members, and must be recorded in a
register kept for the purpose by the appropriate legal advisor or equivalent in
each partner Council.
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5.

FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND PROCEDURES

5.1

Income
Income can be a vulnerable asset and effective income collection systems are
necessary to ensure that all income due is identified, collected, receipted and
banked properly. It is preferable to obtain income in advance of supplying
goods or services as this improves the SDPA’s cashflow and also avoids the
time and cost of administering debts.

5.1.1 Charges levied by the SDPA shall be reviewed in accordance with the
appropriate Charging Policy.
5.1.2 It shall be the duty of the Treasurer to ensure the proper recovery of all
monies due to the SDPA. To this end, he or she shall ensure that proper
financial and accounting arrangements are made for the recording, collection,
custody, control and disposal of cash.
5.1.3 All money received by an Officer on behalf of the SDPA shall without delay be
paid to the Treasurer or, as he or she may direct, to Aberdeenshire Council’s
Bank account or transmitted directly to any other body or person entitled
thereto. No deduction may be made from such money save to the extent that
the Treasurer may specifically authorise. Appropriate accounting entries shall
be effected in a timely and accurate manner to record all income due and
collected.
5.1.4 Maximum limits for cash holdings shall be agreed with, and shall not be
exceeded without the express permission of the Treasurer
5.1.5 Irrecoverable debts up to a value of £10,000 may be written off by the
Treasurer in consultation with the SDPA Manager / or Management Group.
Debts in excess of £10,000 may be written off only after due consideration
and approval by the SDPA. All irrecoverable debts, where the debtor has
been subject to bankruptcy, sequestration or liquidation, may be written off by
the Treasurer.
5.1.6 If the impact of such a write-off is such that it will result in the amount of any
revenue budget head being exceeded, or an income figure not being reached,
then the provisions of Regulation 3.3.2 shall apply.
5.1.7 An irrecoverable debt is one where there is no reasonable prospect of
recovery. Once formally written off, no active pursuit of the debt will normally
be undertaken.
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5.2

Authority to Incur Expenditure

5.2.1 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall have authority to incur
expenditure included in the approved Revenue Budget for the services for
which he or she is responsible up to the level of the Budget provision subject
to Regulations 5.2.2 to 5.2.3 below.
5.2.2 Expenditure on the alteration, maintenance or repair of buildings may not be
incurred until appropriate technical or professional advice has been taken
Expenditure on I.T. software and hardware may not be incurred until
appropriate technical or professional advice has been taken.
5.2.3 Single items of expenditure on supplies, goods, materials or services shall
require competitive quotations in accordance with tendering arrangements set
out in Regulation 5.3.
5.3

Procurement of Works, Goods or Services
Public money should be spent with demonstrable probity and in accordance
with the SDPA’s policies. The SDPA has a responsibility to achieve best
value through economy and efficiency whilst following the key principles of
equal treatment, non-discrimination, transparency and proportionality.
The SDPA’s procedures should help to ensure that the SDPA obtains value for
money from their purchasing arrangements whilst complying with legal
obligations and procurement principles.
Officers should seek assistance from the Commercial and Procurement
Service.
Definitions

5.3.1 The following definitions will apply to regulation 5.3:
Award Report means a formal report for approval by the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group or the SDPA, as the case may be (conforming to a
template approved by the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services)
seeking authority to award a contract for the purchase of works, goods or
services.
Business Case means a formal report for the approval by the SDPA
Manager / or Management Group or the SDPA, as the case may be,
(conforming to a template approved by the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services) seeking authority to conduct a procurement for the
purchase of works, goods or services.
Chief Officer means a Chief Officer of the SDPA having delegated authority
to conduct a procurement process and award contracts in accordance with
the Scheme of Governance.
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Committee means the SDPA having delegated authority to conduct a
procurement and award a contract in terms of the Scheme of Governance.
Committee Threshold means a Contract Value of over £1,000,000.
Contract means a contract entered into or to be entered into by the SDPA
and a supplier for works, goods or services and includes a framework
agreement or a call-off contract under a framework agreement unless the
context requires otherwise and also includes income or savings generating
arrangements as described in regulation 5.3.35.
Contract Value means, subject to regulation 5.3.8 (Aggregation), the total
value of a contract (exclusive of VAT) payable by the SDPA under the
contract over the whole life of the contract (including any optional extension
periods or any value transferred to the supplier by way of a concession or
rights or some other asset/non-cash transfer).
Direct Award means the award of a Contract without the SDPA having
sought quotes or tenders.
EU Thresholds means the contract value thresholds set out in the Public
Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2015 governing the applicability of those
Regulations to public contracts.
Procurement Guidance Notes means the procurement guidance notes
published by the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services and as
amended from time to time.
Procurement Legislation means the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act
2014, the Public Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2015, the Procurement
(Scotland) Regulations 2016 and any other legislation which amends this
legislation or governs public procurement in Scotland.
Procuring Officer means an officer of the SDPA responsible for
administering a procurement process having been approved by the Head of
Commercial and Procurement Services for such purpose in accordance with
regulation 5.3.3(iii) (and which officer may be referred to as a “Delegated
Procurer” in the Procurement Guidance Notes”).
Scheme of Governance means Aberdeenshire Council’s Scheme of
Governance authorising Committees and Officers, as the case may be, to
exercise powers on behalf of the Council.
5.3.2 In the event of conflicting terms the following order of priority will apply:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Procurement Legislation,
Part 2 of the Scheme of Governance, Delegations,
Part 3 of the Scheme of Governance - Financial Regulations,
Part 4B of the Scheme of Governance - Procurement Guidance Notes
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Head of Commercial and Procurement Services
5.3.3 The Head of Commercial and Procurement Services shall be responsible for:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Overall management of the procurement function of the SDPA,
Maintaining an up to date Contracts Register in accordance with the
requirements of the Procurement Legislation for the monitoring of all
contracts and framework agreements developed or in use across the
SDPA, which shall include the value and amount of each contract
(where able to be so identified),
Designating suitable officers as Procuring Officers and maintaining a
register of Procuring Officers,
Organising appropriate training for Procuring Officers,
Publishing the Procurement Guidance Notes and ensuring that a
monitoring process is in place.

Procuring Officers and Guidance
5.3.4 No officer shall be permitted to undertake a procurement process unless that
officer has been designated a Procuring Officer by the Head of Commercial
and Procurement Services.
5.3.5 The Head of Commercial and Procurement Services may at their discretion
withdraw an officer’s authority to administer procurements and remove that
officer from the register of approved Procuring Officers.
5.3.6 Procuring Officers shall observe all Procurement Legislation, the Scheme of
Governance, (including the Financial Regulations) and the terms of the
Procurement Guidance Notes when administering procurements.
5.3.7 Procuring Officers shall notify the Head of Commercial and Procurement
Services of details of all Contracts with a Contract Value of £50,000 or more
for which they are responsible (a) which have been entered into by the SDPA
during the current financial year (with sufficient information to enable the Head
of Commercial and Procurement Services to maintain an accurate and up to
date Contracts Register) and (b) prior to 31 March, details of all proposed
Contracts for which they will be responsible during the next financial year. All
information to be provided in a format approved by the Head of Commercial
and Procurement Services.
Aggregation of Contracts
5.3.8 Where a Contract is one of a series of similar Contracts, across the SDPA for
the same category of goods, or specific requirements needed to complete a
project, the value of each must be aggregated to determine the relevant
Contract Value. In the foregoing circumstances the Procuring Officer should
seek guidance from the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services
before proceeding. The splitting of requirements into smaller lots or orders or
shorter contract periods in an attempt to avoid the Contract Value limits in
these regulations is expressly prohibited.
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Contract Term
5.3.9 All contracts should have a defined duration or be capable of being terminated
on a fixed period of notice by the SDPA.
5.3.10 Contracts will be subject to review by the SDPA at least every four years. A
Contract may only be continued beyond the initial period if it continues to
represent best value and provided the appropriate approval is obtained in
accordance with these regulations.
Internal Suppliers and Cross Authority Arrangements
5.3.11 Where works, goods or services can be provided by a Service of one of the
Partnership Council’s, orders should be placed with that Council Service,
unless best value will be achieved by external provision. If it is believed that
best value can be achieved by external provision then, advice on the way to
proceed shall be sought from the Head of Commercial and Procurement
Services by the purchasing service following consultation with the in-house
provider. It is the responsibility of the manager of the in-house provider to
ensure that best value is achieved by either (a) providing such goods or
carrying out such works or services or (b) assisting in contracting with an
external provider.
Authority to Conduct a Procurement
5.3.12 Subject to regulations 5.3.26 (special urgency), no tender shall be invited or
contract entered into (except where the Contract Value is below £10,000)
unless a Business Case has been approved by the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group, and the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services
has been notified. The allocation of a budget as part of the SDPA’s budget
setting process is insufficient.
The method of authorising the initiation of a procurement process
is dependent on the estimated Contract Value as follows:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

Where the estimated Contract Value is below the SDPA Threshold –
either - the SDPA Manager / or Management Group (subject to subparagraph (iii) below), or the
SDPA where the SDPA has reserved the right to approve the Business
Case following notification of the work plan,
Where the estimated Contract Value is equal to or more than the
SDPA Threshold –the SDPA,
Before the SDPA Manager can authorise the initiation of a procurement
process in accordance with sub-paragraph (i) above the Business
Case must have been considered by the management team.
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Procurement Procedures
Contracts less than £10,000
5.3.13 Where the Contract Value is estimated to be less than £10,000 the Procuring
Officer must obtain a minimum of one written quote and be able to
demonstrate that best value has been achieved.
Contracts equal to or over £10,000, but less than £50,000
5.3.14 Subject to regulation 5.3.24, where the Contract Value is estimated to be
£10,000 or more but less than £50,000, competitive quotations must be
sought and obtained in writing from at least four suppliers, including, where
appropriate, internal service providers. The Public Contracts Scotland website
must be used for the advertisement of such Contracts, unless the Head of
Commercial and Procurement Services has given express permission
otherwise. Should the Procuring Officer be unable to obtain four written
quotes, a request should be submitted to the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services (using the form approved by the Head of Commercial
and Procurement Services for such purpose) to obtain their prior consent to
proceed with fewer than four quotations. Where there is no alternative
supplier, and the SDPA is legally obliged to make the payment (e.g. exam
fees, licences/copyright, disclosure fees), there is no requirement to obtain the
approval of the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services.
Contracts £50,000 and above
5.3.15 Subject to regulation 5.3.24 if the Contract Value is estimated to be £50,000
or more a formal competitive tendering process shall be undertaken in
accordance with the Procurement Legislation and the Procurement Guidance
Notes. The Public Contracts Scotland website must be used for the
advertisement of such Contracts, unless the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services has given express permission otherwise.
Contracts above EU Thresholds
5.3.16 Where the value of the contract is estimated to exceed the relevant EU
Threshold or it is anticipated that there might be cross border interest in the
procurement the advice of the Head of Commercial and Procurement
Services must be sought.
Tender Opening
5.3.17 Tenders must be submitted via electronic means unless the Head of
Commercial and Procurement Services agrees otherwise. Where tenders are
to be submitted via electronic copy only, the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services must be consulted on the method for receipting and
recording of tenders. In the case of a hard copy tender submission tenders
shall be opened by an officer in the presence of two members of the SDPA or,
if members are not available, officers from the Council advisors to the SDPA.
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Selection and Down Selection
5.3.18 Where the shortlisting of interested parties or down selection of tenderers is
permitted as part of a procurement process the Chief Officer shall have
authority to select the parties to be invited to tender or to be allowed to
continue in the tendering process, as the case may be.
Tender Evaluation
5.3.19 Tenders shall be evaluated by an evaluation panel in accordance with the
procedures set out in the Procurement Guidance Notes.
5.3.20 Tenders shall be evaluated in accordance with the quotation or tender award
criteria set out in the invitation to quote or tender, and on the basis of
establishing which offer is the most economically advantageous. No other
criteria shall be applied.
5.3.21 A written record shall be maintained outlining the evaluation process,
recording the process followed, the criteria applied, and detailing the reasons
for the decision and incorporated into the Award Report. This record shall be
retained as per Aberdeenshire Council’s Retention Policy and is further detailed
within Procurement Guidance Notes.
Post Tender Negotiation
5.3.22 Post tender negotiations may only be considered where permitted by the
Procurement Legislation and then only with the written approval of the Head
of Commercial and Procurement Services of the approach to be adopted.
Authority to Award Tendered Contracts
5.3.23 Subject to the submission of a satisfactory Award Report by the Procuring
Officer, authority to award contracts following a tendering procedure is
permitted as follows:(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Where the Contract Value is less than the SDPA Threshold – SDPA
Manager,
Where authority to conduct the procurement has been approved by the
SDPA and the Contract Value does not exceed the amount approved
by the SDPA by more than 25% – SDPA Manager / or Management
Group (subject to sub-paragraph (v) below),
Where authority to conduct the procurement has been approved by a
SDPA Manager / or Management Group the Contract Value is equal to
or exceeds the SDPA Threshold – the SDPA,
Where authority to conduct the procurement has been approved by
SDPA and the Contract Value both exceeds the SDPA Threshold and
exceeds the amount approved by the SDPA by more than 25% - the
SDPA,
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(v)

Before the SDPA Manager / or Management Group can award a
Contract in accordance with sub-paragraph (ii) above the Award Report
must have been considered by the management team.

Authority to make a Direct Award (including special urgency)
5.3.24 Notwithstanding regulation 5.3.23, a SDPA Manager / or Management
Group may authorise a Direct Award but then only in the following
circumstances:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

Where the Contract Value is below £10,000 and the SDPA Manager /
or Management Group is satisfied it represents best value,
Where the Contract Value is £10,000 or more but less than £50,000,
the Procuring Officer has presented a satisfactory Award Report
demonstrating best value and the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services either consents in accordance with regulation
5.3.14 or is satisfied that there is no practical or economically sensible
alternative,
Where the Contract Value is £50,000 or more but below the SDPA
Threshold, the Procuring Officer has submitted an Award Report and
the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services is satisfied that
there are grounds for permitting a Direct Award in accordance with the
Procurement Legislation (which grounds may include awarding a calloff contract to a supplier under a framework agreement without reopening competition),
For the purchase of second hand goods in accordance with regulation
5.3.37,
In the case of special urgency as set out in regulation 5.3.26.

5.3.25 Regardless of the Contract Value, the SDPA may authorise a Direct Award
provided the Head of Commercial and Procurement Services is satisfied that
there are grounds for permitting a Direct Award in accordance with the
Procurement Legislation (which grounds may include awarding a call-off
contract to a supplier under a framework agreement without re-opening
competition).
5.3.26 In the event of special urgency brought about by circumstances
unforeseeable by, and not attributable to the SDPA, the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group may authorise a Direct Award provided the Head of
Commercial and Procurement Services is satisfied and provides written
confirmation that there are grounds for permitting a Direct Award in
accordance with the Procurement Legislation.
5.3.27 If there is any doubt about whether there are grounds for permitting a Direct
Award in accordance with the Procurement Legislation the Head of
Commercial and Procurement Services shall consult with the Aberdeen City
Council’s Chief Officer - Governance before agreeing that the action is
justified in the circumstances.
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Contract Extensions and Variations
5.3.28 Where there are reasons to justify the extension or variation of the scope of
an existing Contract and the combined Contract Value of the existing Contract
and the extension or variation is less than the SDPA Threshold, the SDPA
Manager / or Management Group shall have authority to agree the extension
or variation following presentation of an Award Report by the Procuring Officer
justifying the extension or variation and subject to the Head of Commercial
and Procurement Services being satisfied that such an extension or variation
is permitted by the Procurement Legislation.
5.3.29 Subject to regulation 5.3.33, where there are good reasons to justify the
extension or variation of the scope of an existing Contract and the combined
Contract Value of the existing Contract and the extension or variation is equal
to or exceeds the SDPA Threshold, the SDPA shall have authority to agree
the extension or variation following presentation of an Award Report by the
Procuring Officer justifying the extension or variation and subject to the
Head of Commercial and Procurement Services being satisfied that such an
extension or variation is permitted by the Procurement Legislation.
5.3.30 There shall be no requirement to report to the SDPA or to seek SDPA
approval to extend a contract where the option to extend was included in the
original SDPA approval. The authority to exercise an option to extend in
these circumstances shall be delegated to the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group.
Framework Agreements
5.3.31 A framework agreement is a general term for agreements with suppliers
which set out terms and conditions under which specific purchases (call-offs)
can be made throughout the term of the framework agreement. These
regulations also apply to framework agreements and call-off contracts
including the thresholds for approval of expenditure and authority to award
Contracts.
5.3.32 Where Aberdeenshire Council has entered into a framework agreement with
external suppliers covering the provision of goods, works or services for the
whole Council, orders for such goods, works or services shall be placed with
the contracted suppliers. The approval of the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services must be sought before seeking alternative provision.
5.3.33 Officers may procure works, goods and services under external framework
agreements provided that authority to incur expenditure has been approved in
accordance with these regulations and also provided that:
(i)

Use of an external framework agreement by Aberdeenshire Council
has been approved in writing by the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services,
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(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

No material change may be made to the call off terms under the
framework agreement. (Calling-off from the framework may only be
done in accordance with the procedures laid down within that
framework),
All call-off contracts must be reported to the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services,
If the aggregate Contract Value of call-off contracts under a framework
agreement is likely to exceed the SDPA Threshold then the authority of
the SDPA to incur the expenditure should be obtained in advance of
the SDPA Threshold being exceeded.

Purchase of Second Hand Goods
5.3.34 Second hand goods up to a value of £50,000 may be acquired without a
competitive quotation being obtained provided that:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

The SDPA Manager / or Management Group can demonstrate that the
purchase is necessary to facilitate service delivery,
The SDPA Manager / or Management Group can demonstrate that the
purchase represents best value, having given due consideration to the
cost of an equivalent new purchase and estimated life of the asset both
from new and current age,
The goods have been subject to inspection to ascertain their physical
condition, with a record kept of the outcome of the inspection,
The SDPA has clear title to the goods, and
The SDPA Manager / or Management Group obtains in writing
(including e-mail) the prior consent of the Head of Commercial and
Procurement Services before effecting the purchase.

Income and Savings Generating Arrangements
5.3.35 The requirements in relation to the award of Contracts and the approval
thresholds detailed throughout regulation 5.3 will apply equally to:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

Contracts resulting in the generation of income,
Contracts transferring a benefit/asset to a supplier, the relevant value
of which will be the value of the benefit transferred net of any income
received or gross of cost incurred by the SDPA as a result of the
arrangement, and
Arrangements based on a review of activities resulting in a saving to
the SDPA where a percentage of that saving is paid to the contractor.

Purchase Orders
5.3.36 Subject to regulation 5.3.37 the purchase of all works, goods or services shall
be ordered or instructed on an official purchase order form, which shall be in
a format approved by the Treasurer. Where by reason of urgency or
necessity an oral order is issued, it must be confirmed immediately in writing
by the issue of an official purchase order form. The supplier shall be
requested to quote order numbers on all invoices.

Page 87

5.3.37 The Treasurer has authority to dispense with the requirement to complete a
purchase order and shall maintain a register of such dispensations.
Purchasing with a purchase card is subject to this dispensation.
5.3.38 The purchase order with the relevant contract references/schedule numbers,
included where appropriate, shall be signed in manuscript by the SDPA
Manager / or Management Group or other authorised signatory, or by
appropriate electronic methods as approved by the Treasurer. The SDPA
Manager / or Management Group must furnish the Treasurer with a list of
signatories approved for this purpose, and shall advise him or her of additions
to or deletions from the list as they occur. The officer approving the purchase
order should be satisfied that there will be appropriate budgetary provision
covering the estimated cost prior to authorisation. All purchase orders or
contracts of £50,000 and above in value must be authorised by someone at
Head of Service level or above, subject to obtaining appropriate approvals.
5.3.39 Regulation 5.3.36 does not apply to supplies of metered services, periodical
payments such as rent and rates, and petty cash purchases.
5.4

Payment of Accounts
In order to ensure the probity of payments, it is essential that appropriate
controls are in operation to confirm that the expenditure has been
appropriately committed in accordance with Regulation 5.3, the works, goods
or services have been supplied to the SDPA in a satisfactory manner, and
costs are in accordance with estimates.

5.4.1 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group having issued an order is
responsible for examining, verifying and certifying the accuracy of the related
invoice(s) and similarly for any other payment voucher or account. Such
certification shall be in manuscript, in a manner or form prescribed by, or on
behalf of the Treasurer. The names of officers authorised to sign such records
shall be submitted to the Treasurer, together with specimen signatures and
initials, and this list shall be amended on the occasion of any change therein.
5.4.2 Certified accounts shall either (a) be passed without delay to the Treasurer
who shall make payment after examining them and making such enquiries
and receiving such information and explanations as are deemed necessary,
or (b) be paid by the Treasurer after processing by the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group in accordance with procedures agreed by the Treasurer.
Apart from petty cash payments and other payments of imprest/advances, the
normal method of payment of money due from the SDPA shall be by
electronic funds transfer.
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5.5

Salaries and Wages
Staff costs are the largest item of expenditure for the SDPA. It is therefore
important that payments are accurate, timely, made only when they are due
for services to the SDPA and that payments accord with individuals’
conditions of employment. It is also important that all payments are accurately
and completely recorded.

5.5.1 With the general exception of pensions to former employees, the payment of
salaries, wages, compensations and other emoluments to all employees of
the SDPA shall be made by Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development.
5.5.2 The SDPA Manager / or Management Group shall notify Aberdeenshire
Council’s Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
without delay and in the form prescribed by him or her, of all matters affecting
the payment of such emoluments and, in particular –
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

appointments, resignations, dismissals, suspensions, secondments
and transfers;
absences from duty for sickness or other reason, apart from approved
leave;
changes in remuneration, other than normal increments and pay
awards and agreements of general application;
information necessary to maintain records of service for
superannuation, income tax etc.

5.5.3 All time records or other pay documents shall be in a form prescribed or
approved by Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development and shall be certified in manuscript by or on
behalf of the SDPA Manager / or Management Group. Certified documents
shall either (a) be passed without delay to Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of
Human Resources and Organisational Development who shall make payment
after examining them and making such enquiries and receiving such
information and explanations as are deemed necessary, or (b) be paid by
Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development after processing by the SDPA Manager concerned in
accordance with procedures agreed by Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of
Human Resources and Organisational Development. The names of officers
authorised to sign such records shall be submitted by the SDPA Manager / or
Management Group to Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of Human Resources
and Organisational Development, together with specimen signatures and
initials, and this list shall be amended on the occasion of any change therein.
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5.5.4 Should it be established that an employee has been overpaid, recovery will be
pursued. Should the SDPA believe that there are mitigating circumstances, nonrecovery may only be permitted if the Treasurer gives written approval,
following consultation with Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development.
5.6

Travelling and Subsistence Allowances

5.6.1 All payments in respect of travelling and subsistence allowances shall be at
rates determined from time to time by Aberdeenshire Council and in
accordance with the Council’s scheme for the payment of travelling and
subsistence allowances.
5.6.2 All claims for payment of travelling and subsistence allowances by staff shall
be duly certified and submitted to Aberdeenshire Council’s Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development on the approved form, made up
to the last day of each month, accompanied by receipts for expenditure
incurred and submitted as soon as possible. The names of officers authorised
to certify such records shall be sent to the Treasurer together with specimen
signatures and initials and shall be amended on the occasion of any change.
5.6.3 The certification by or on behalf of the SDPA Manager / or Management
Group shall be taken to mean that the certifying officer is satisfied that the
journeys were authorised, the mileage and expenses incurred are reasonable
and agree with the journey description detailed, and the allowances are
properly payable by the SDPA.
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Agenda Item 6

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 17 September 2019
Title : SDPA Budget Monitoring position as at 31 August 2019
1

Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Strategic Development Planning Authority
(SDPA) to note the budget monitoring position for 2019/20 as at 31 August 2019.
2

Background

2.1 The budget for the SDPA was considered at the meeting on 21 March 2018.
3

Proposal

3.1 The budget monitoring report showing expenditure for 2019/20 is attached as
Appendix 1 to this report for Members’ consideration.

4

Recommendations

4.1 It is recommended that the Authority:
a) Notes the budget monitoring position as at 31 August 2019.

Alan Wood, Treasurer
17 September 2019
Report prepared by Kenny Oxton, Accountant

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92

ABERDEENSHIRE FINANCE

Prepared by:

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY

ACTUAL
2018/19
£'000

1
2
3
4

Staff Costs
Salaries and Wages
Superannuation
National Insurance
Other Staff Costs

5

Premises Costs
Other Property Costs

6
7
8
9
10

Administration Costs
Printing, Stationery and Postages
Telephone Costs
Course Expenses
Advertising and Promotions
Other Administration Costs

11

Transport Costs
Travel and Subsistence

12
13
14
15
16
17

Supplies and Services
Purchase of Equipment
Purchase of Materials
Legal Expenses
Other Supplies and Services
External Audit Fees
Work Done by Outside Contractor

18
19
20

REVISED
BUDGET
2019/20
£'000

ACTUAL
TO
AUG-19
£'000

%

REVISED
FORECAST
2019/20
£'000

105
20
11
0
136

122
25
14
0
161

34
7
4
0
45

27.87%
28.00%
28.57%
0.00%

122
25
14
0
161

0
0

0
0

0
0

0.00%

0
0

3
0
1
1
0
5

1
1
2
1
2
7

0
0
0
0
0
0

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

1
1
2
1
2
7

1
1

2
2

0
0

0.00%

2
2

1
0
0
0
3
0
4

1
1
0
32
4
0
38

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

1
1
0
32
4
0
38

Gross Expenditure

146

208

45

21.63%

208

Income
Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeenshire Council
Other Income

(73)
(73)
0

(104)
(104)
0

0
0
0

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

(104)
(104)
0

(145)

(208)

0

0.00%

(208)

1

0

45

Total Income
Net Expenditure

NOTES

0
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Agenda Item 7

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 25 September 2019
Report Title: Strategic Development Planning Authority - Bulletin
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this Report is to give Members a brief overview of strategic
planning matters involving or relating to the work undertaken by the Strategic
Development Planning Authority (SDPA).
2.

Update on the Examination of the Proposed Strategic Development Plan

2.1 The Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority
submitted the Proposed Strategic Development Plan 2018 (proposed plan) to
Scottish Ministers for examination on 22 April 2019. On the 28 May 2019 the
Scottish Government’s Planning and Environmental Appeals Division advised
that a Reporter had been appointed to carry out the examination of the
proposed plan. The Reporter appointed is Mr Alasdair Edwards MA (Hons)
and he was joined by a second Reporter Martin Seddon on the 20 June to aid
the speedy delivery of the Examination Report. The examination of the
proposed plan commenced on 25 June 2019.
2.2 To date two hearings have been held regarding unresolved representations to
the proposed plan. The first hearing related to transport matters and concerns
raised by Transport Scotland, while the second hearing was held to explore
more fully the housing land supply issues raised through a number of
representations.
2.3 The hearing on “Our Connections” transport issues took place on the 5 July
2019. A relatively early hearing within the Examination process was held
because of Transport Scotland’s objection and the recent rejection of the
SESPLAN proposed Strategic Development Plan. Transport Scotland’s
concerns were explored and have been resolved with minor changes to
wording within the “Our Connections” chapter and Schedule 1 transport
intervention options. Transport Scotland did confirm at the hearing that the
unresolved transport issues, which were the reason for the Scottish Ministers
rejection of the proposed SESPLAN proposed Strategic Development Plan,
did not apply to the proposed plan.
2.4 The hearing on housing land supply issues was held on the 30 August 2019
and was attended by the Strategic Development Planning Authority and
officers from both Councils, Housing Developers and Homes for Scotland.
Concerns, issues and potential changes to the proposed plan were explored
as well as discussions on using the most recently approved housing land audit
to inform the effective land supply shown in table 3 of the proposed plan. The
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issues of affordable housing, open market housing and its delivery, along with
opportunities and constraints were also explored.
2.5 Altogether six further information requests have been received from the
Planning and Environmental Appeals Division. In addition to housing and
transport issues, onshore wind ‘areas of search’ and the supply of aggregates
to serve development in the City Region have been discussed and currently sit
with the Reporter.
2.6 No firm date has been given for the completion of the Examination and of the
draft Report of Examination. While the timetable allows for six months for
Examination, it is hoped that the SDPA may receive a report of the
Examination before the end of Autumn 2019.
3.

Planning Act Update

3.1

The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 received Royal Assent on the on the 25 July
2019. The Act enhances the status of the National Planning Framework,
removes the requirement to produce Strategic Development Plans and
restructures the processes for the production of Local Development Plans.
The Act includes provisions for regulations to be made relating to a wide range
of issues, including those relating to development planning, development
management, environment planning, performance and fees.

3.2

The Act removes the need to prepare Strategic Development Plans and
instead introduces the opportunity for all planning authorities across Scotland
to prepare regional spatial strategies. This is not just for City Regions as was
the case for Strategic Development Plans. The status of the Strategic
Development Planning Authority has not been affected by the changes of the
Planning (Scotland) Act 2019.

3.3

The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 states that “A planning authority, or two or
more such authorities acting jointly, are to prepare and adopt a regional spatial
strategy.” The strategy is to specify the area or region to which it applies,
identify the need for strategic development, the outcomes to which said
development will contribute, the priorities for delivery of strategic development
and the locations to be shown on a map or diagram. A draft of the strategy is
to be published and subject to consultation, along with a summary of the
information taken into account in its preparation. As soon as possible after
consultation the strategy is to be adopted and published and submitted to
Scottish Ministers. “Strategic development” is defined in the Act as
development that is likely to have a significant impact on future development
within the area of more than one planning authority. The regional spatial
strategy is not part of the statutory Development Plan. However, the National
Planning Framework and Local Development Plans will have regard to it.

3.4

The Scottish Government’s Chief Planner advised on the 30 July 2019 that a
work programme would be published to provide clarity on priorities and their
timing in September 2019. Consideration will be transitional arrangements,
particularly for development planning, with expectations that further interim
advice on this will be issued. No interim advice has yet been made available.
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The Chief Planner has indicated that he expects it to take around 2 years for
the detail of the new system to take shape. The speed at which
implementation would progress would however depend on a range of factors
including the capacity of the Scottish Parliament and stakeholders, resourcing,
research requirements, and level of urgency in terms of the operation of the
system.
3.5 In order to place this latest planning review in context, it is possibly worth
recollecting the sequence of events in the previous review of the Planning
system. Scottish Ministers agreed to approve the Aberdeen City and Shire
Structure Plan on 27 February 2009, and in doing so advised that they were
content that the Plan as submitted conformed with the then legislative
framework and that the Plan was a positive response to the Scottish Ministers’
desire for succinct development plans and the Plan’s aspirations and the
vision for the future of the area was endorsed. Legislation on the requirement
to prepare Strategic Development Plans was brought in in December 2006,
with the confirmation on City Region areas brought in through secondary
legislation in 2008.
3.6 The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 also brings a new role for the National
Planning Framework. In future the National Planning Framework will include
national planning policies which were previously contained in Scottish
Planning Policy. It will also form part of the development plan, enhancing its
status. National Planning Framework 4 will also be relevant to regional spatial
strategies and important for communities as they develop their Local Place
Plans. The next National Planning Framework will be National Planning
Framework 4, and a phased development approach has been promoted for
National Planning Framework 4 development and preparation, with the
following anticipated timeframe and structure:
•
•
•
•

Autumn 2019 - Framing the engagement strategy;
Winter 2019 - Early engagement on the scope and content of NPF4;
Spring 2020 - Consideration of responses;
Autumn 2020 - Consultation on a draft NPF4.

3.7 Scottish Government in its “Programme of Government” for 2019 to 2020
(published September 2019) advises that they will begin engagement on the
fourth National Planning Framework in autumn 2019 and publish the draft
National Planning Framework by Summer 2020. This will cover the period up
to 2050 and this revised National Planning Framework will help to radically
accelerate reduction of emissions.
4.

Other Relevant Decisions from Scottish Ministers

4.1 There are a number of other commitments within the Government’s recently
published “Programme of Government” for 2019 to 2020 (September 2019).
This document makes specific commitments to:
• decarbonise Scotland’s passenger rail services by 2035, ahead of the
UK’s target of 2040;
• establish Net Zero-Carbon Standards for all new public sector buildings;
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•

•
•

take forward a number of actions to support and promote Carbon
Capture, Utilization, and Storage (CCUS), including support for the Acorn
project at St Fergus and the emerging Scottish industry led Carbon
Capture, Utilization, and Storage alliance;
set new standards to reduce energy demand, and associated carbon
emissions, within new buildings by 2021. In addition, we will require new
homes consented from 2024 to use renewable or low carbon heat; and
publish an updated position on the Energy Efficiency Route Map in
December 2019 to accelerate the improvements of Energy Performance
Certificate ratings in our homes.

4.2 There are a number of other commitments relating to decarbonising North Sea
oil and gas exploration and production, however those set out above most
closely relate to policies and projects directly related to the aspiration and
ambition in the proposed Strategic Development Plan. The Scottish
Governments programme for 2019 – 2020 is available via:
https://www.gov.scot/programme-for-government/
4.3 Consultation is currently underway on Scotland’s draft National Transport
Strategy. The consultation opened on the 31 July and the closing date for
comments is 23 October 2019. Documentation relating to this consultation via:
https://consult.gov.scot/transport-scotland/national-transport-strategy/
5.

Local Development Plan Update
Aberdeen City Local Development Plan

5.1 The Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017) was adopted by Aberdeen City
Council on 20 January 2017. Under current legislation, Planning Authorities
are required to prepare a new Local Development Plan at least every 5 years.
5.2 Aberdeen City Council has begun a review of its Local Development Plan and
consulted on the Main Issues Report from 4 March to 13 May 2019. The
Council is in the process of preparing the proposed Local Development Plan
which is programmed to be considered by Full Council in December and
published for consultation in March 2020.
Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan
5.3 The Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan (2017) was adopted by
Aberdeenshire Council on 17 April 2017. The Aberdeenshire Local
Development Plan is also under review. Aberdeenshire Council’s
Infrastructure Services Committee agreed the Main Issues Report for public
consultation on 29 November 2018, consultation ran from 14 January 2019,
and the consultation period ran until 8 April 2019.
5.4 The proposed Local Development Plan is expected to be published in late
2019 following consideration of the introduction, strategy and policies of the
proposed plan by Aberdeenshire Area Committees (ongoing) and
Infrastructure Services Committee on the 3 October 2019. The intention is to
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report the Draft Proposed Local Development Plan to Aberdeenshire Council
in November, seeking the Council’s settled view on the Plan.
6.

Strategic Infrastructure Update
A96 Dualling East of Huntly - Route Options and Design Update

6.1 As previously reported in the June 2019 Bulletin drop-in sessions regarding
Route Options took place at the end of May 2019, and the consultation period
is now closed. It is currently understood that Transport Scotland will keep to
their published timetable and announce a preferred route by the end of 2019.
Rail Network Improvements / Initiatives
6.2 Network Rail has completed the capacity improvements on the Aberdeen to
Inverness rail line on the Dyce to Inverurie section and construction has
started on Kintore Station. The redoubling of track to provide additional
capacity will allow for enhanced rail service provision on this line along with
the development of a new rail station at Kintore. Rail service improvements
are to be included in the December 2019 timetable which will include a half
hourly Aberdeen to Inverurie service and additional services during peak
hours.

Report Prepared By:
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Strategic Development Planning Authority
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Aberdeen City Council
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